
 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
wwww.leicestershire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Employment Committee  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Thursday, 16 September 2021 at 10.00 am 

Location: Sparkenhoe Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield 

Contact: Anna Poole (0116 305 2583) 

Email: anna.poole@leics.gov.uk 

 
Membership 

 
  

Mr. P. Bedford CC 
Mr. L. Breckon JP CC 

Ms. L. Broadley CC 
Mr. B. Champion CC 

 

Dr. R. K. A. Feltham CC 
Mr. B. Harrison-Rushton CC 
Mr. R. J. Shepherd CC 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item   Report by   

 
 
1.  

  
Appointment of Chairman.  
 

 
 

 

2.  
  

Election of Deputy Chairman.  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

Minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 
2021.  
 

 
 

(Pages 3 - 6) 

4.  
  

Question Time.  
 

 
 

 

5.  
  

Questions asked by members under Standing 
Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 

 
 

 

6.  
  

To advise of any other items which the 
Chairman has decided to take as urgent 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

7.  
  

Declarations of interest in respect of items on 
the agenda.  
 
 
 

 
 

 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works


 
 
 
 

8.  
  

Pay Policy Statement 2021.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 7 - 24) 

9.  
  

Wellbeing Update.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 25 - 32) 

10.  
  

Attendance Management.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 33 - 38) 

11.  
  

Diversity and Inclusion update.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 39 - 42) 

12.  
  

Health, Safety and Wellbeing Annual Report 
2020-21.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 43 - 72) 

13.  
  

Organisational Change Policy and Procedure: 
Action Plans.  
 

Chief Executive 
 

(Pages 73 - 78) 

14.  
  

Any other items which the Chairman has 
decided to take as urgent.  
 

 
 

 

15.  
  

Date of Future Meetings.  
 

 
 

 

 The next meeting of the Committee is scheduled to be held on 2 
December 2021 at 10:00am. 
 
Future meetings will be held on:  
 

 3 February 2022 

 26 May 2022 

 15 September 2022 

 8 December 2022 
 
 

 



 

  

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Employment Committee held at County Hall, Glenfield on 
Thursday, 4 February 2021.  
 

PRESENT 
 

Mr. J. B. Rhodes CC (in the Chair) 
 

Ms. L. Broadley CC 
Ms. Betty Newton CC 
 

Mr. I. D. Ould OBE CC 
Mr. R. J. Shepherd CC 
 

 
 

26. Minutes of the previous meeting.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 3 December 2020 were taken as read, confirmed and 
signed.  
 

27. Question Time.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
34. 
 

28. Questions asked by members.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
7(3) and 7(5). 
 

29. Urgent items.  
 
There were no urgent items for consideration. 
 

30. Declarations of interest.  
 
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of 
items on the agenda for the meeting. 
 
No declarations were made. 
 

31. People Strategy 2020-2024.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources seeking 
approval for the County Council’s People Strategy 2020-24. A copy of the report, marked 
‘Agenda Item 6’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
Members were informed that the further analysis requested by the Committee at the 
previous meeting on 3 December 2020 was included in the report, namely:  
 

i. The outcomes achieved by the previous People Strategy (2017–2020); 
ii. The outcomes of the evaluation exercise undertaken on the People Strategy 

for 2017-2020 which informed development of the Strategy for 2020-24; and  

3 Agenda Item 3



 
 

 

iii. The smart targets that have been set for each of the key deliverables for Year 
1 of the new People Strategy (2020-2024). 

 
In presenting the report the Director said that the review of the previous Strategy had 
been undertaken independently by the County Council’s Data and Business Intelligence 
Team. Each theme in the People Strategy had a set of key deliverables and these were 
set out in the report.  
 
In response to questions, the following points were raised:  
 

i. The Learning and Development for the Future project developed new methods of 
delivery to ensure that training could be delivered on a remote basis. It was 
imperative going forward that a variety of methods of delivery were utilised, and all 
had been thoroughly tested through the Equality and Human Rights Impact 
Assessment process to ensure that there were no barriers to training for any 
individual.  
 

ii. People working from home had been supplied with appropriate equipment and 
facilities to enable them to do so. An allowance had also been made available to 
staff to enable them to purchase additional equipment to enable them to work from 
home effectively. 
 

iii. Senior managers of grade 15 and above were classified as ‘leaders’; ‘managers’ 
were typically at grade 13 and 14 although there were management roles at other 
levels too. 
 

iv. There were no plans to change the grading structure used by the Council as the 
structure had been in place and working effectively for some time and was also 
subject to change as a result of the major national pay review completed a couple 
of years ago. The Director assured members that he felt that the Council had the 
right grade structure in place and that the job evaluation scheme had been 
equality proofed and was fair.  External market forces were also a factor, and in 
some cases, market premia payments were in place to ensure that the Council 
remained competitive and attracted and retained the best people available.  

  
RESOLVED: 
 
That the People Strategy 2020-24 be approved. 
 

32. Attendance Management.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which 
provided an update on the County Council’s overall position on sickness absence as at 
the end of November 2020.  A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 7’ is filed with 
these minutes. 
 
Arising from discussion, the following points were raised:  
 

i. All departments had made reductions or had stayed below the corporate target of 
7.5 days per FTE. The Chief Executive’s, Corporate Resources and Public Health 
departments had met the corporate target. 

 

4



 
 

 

ii. There had been significant reductions in the level of absence due to back and 
neck injury and musculo-skeletal since last year, potentially due to reduced activity 
and time for people to rest current ailments. Absence due to viral infection and 
cough/cold/flu was also greatly reduced, potentially due to the social distancing 
measures currently in place. Absence due to Covid-19 was increasing and would 
be monitored.  Managers had reported a reduction in the level of illness with their 
staff, potentially due to the reduced level of social interaction.   
 

iii. It was suspected that home working had had a positive impact on sickness 
absence as some staff continued to work from home despite being unwell, 
whereas they may have taken time off sick had they been working in the office.  
 

iv. It was suspected that the level of days lost due to short term absence was high in 
the Corporate Resources section due to the high number of school food staff and 
the need for them to remain absent from work if affected by a stomach bug due to 
food hygiene regulations.  
 

v. It was unknown what impact a return to ‘normality’ with no social distancing would 
have on sickness absence. This would continue to be monitored.  

 
Members said that they were pleased with the reduced level of sickness absence and 
recognised the positive impact of Covid-19. The Director said that it was expected that 
staff would continue to work remotely to some degree, which would help with absence 
levels in the future.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the update provided on the County Council’s overall position on sickness absence 
as at the end of November 2020, be noted. 
 

33. Gender Pay Gap.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which 
presented the initial results of the Gender Pay Gap reporting for the County Council. A 
copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 8’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
Members were informed that an increase in the proportion of females in the higher 
grades had positively influenced the Gender Pay Gap report, which demonstrated the 
success of the positive action programmes undertaken by the Council to encourage 
women into the leadership roles. It was recognised that there was more improvement to 
be made, and the Council was aiming for equality of pay across all grades.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the publication of the results of the Gender Pay Gap analysis by 30 March 2021 be 
supported. 
 

34. Equal Pay Audit.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources concerning 
the findings of an equal pay audit conducted in October 2020. A copy of the report, 
marked ‘Agenda Item 9’ is filed with these minutes. 
 

5



 
 

 

In response to questions, the following points were raised:  
 

i. The data for staff identifying as transgender had not been included in the audit as 
the numbers were so small that they could have potentially been identified.  

 
ii. The significant gender gap evident in the report for standby payments was due to 

the roles affected being mainly occupied by males, for example gritting teams. The 
effectiveness of the new Policy developed regarding standby payments would be 
reviewed during the next equal pay audit. 

 
iii. Market premia payments focused on the market available and the need to attract 

the best staff and were not determined by gender. The Director recognised that 
such payments could be divisive in some cases and assured members that a 
robust business case was required before the addition of a market premia 
payment to a vacancy. Members acknowledged the importance of attracting the 
best people and in getting the right person in the job to maintain service delivery.  

 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That it be noted that: 
 

a) the findings of the Equal Pay Audit, particularly that the current job evaluation 
system (HAY) continues to ensure that pay is determined on an equal basis; 
 

b) additional payments such as honoraria and premia payments will continue to be 
reviewed regularly to ensure that such payments are still justified and do not 
discriminate; and  
 

c) a further report on equal pay be presented to the Employment Committee within 3 
years. 

 
35. Organisational Change Policy and Procedure: Action Plans.  

 
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Executive which presented the current 
Action Plans which contained provision for compulsory redundancy and details of 
progress made with their implementation. A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 10’ 
is filed with these minutes. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the update provided on the current Action Plans which contain provision for 
compulsory redundancy, and details of progress in their implementation, be noted. 
 

36. Date of Next Meeting.  
 
The next meeting of the Committee is scheduled to be held on Thursday 13 May 2021 at 
10:00am. 
 
 

     10.00  - 11.08 am CHAIRMAN 
     04 February 2021 

 

6



 

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE – 16 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2022/23 
 

REPORT OF THE  
DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOUCES 

 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the submission of the Council’s Pay 

Policy Statement for 2022/23, appended to this report, to the County Council for 
approval in December 2021. 

 
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 

 
2. On 15 November 2011 the Localism Act received Royal Assent.  Under Section 38 of 

the Act, local authorities in England and Wales are required to produce a Pay Policy 
Statement for each financial year which must be approved by the Full County 
Council. 

 
3. This statement must set out the Council’s policies in relation to: 

 
i. The remuneration of its chief officers;  
ii. The remuneration of its lowest-paid employees; and  
iii. The relationship between the remuneration of its chief officers and the 

remuneration of its employees who are not chief officers. 
 
4. For the purposes of this statement, remuneration includes basic salary, bonuses and 

other allowances or entitlements related to employment.  
 

5. The Council is required to publish the Pay Policy Statement for 2022/23 on or before 
1 April 2022.  

 

6. The 2020/21 pay structure remains in place at the time of writing although a final 
offer has been made to the Trade Unions which is yet to be accepted.  

 

7. The Employment Committee will be advised of the 2021/22 pay structure, 
incorporating the NJC pay award once agreement between the national employers 
and trade unions has been reached. 

 
Background 
 
8. The proposed Pay Policy Statement attached sets out:  

 
i. The Council’s approach to job evaluation and grading of posts;  
ii. Additional payments that employees are eligible to receive, such as night 

enhancement, overtime;  

7 Agenda Item 8



 

iii. The Council’s pay multiple (the ratio between the highest paid employee and 
the median average salary of the Council’s workforce, excluding schools but 
including ESPO) which is 1:9.41;  

iv. That there is no distinction between chief officers and other employees in 
relation to pension entitlements and severance payments; 

v. The Council’s approach to the re-engagement of former employees. 
 
9. The most recently revised pay structure took effect from 1 April 2020, which ensured 

that the provisions set out by the National Joint Council (NJC) pay award for 2020/21 
were met. Future revisions to the 2021/22 pay structure will incorporate retrospective 
payments once implemented. 

 
10. The current pay structure for all employees up to and including Grade 17 covers the 

period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021. A pay award covering the same period 
was also agreed for employees on Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC) terms and 
conditions for Chief Officers and Chief Executives. These conditions remain in place 
until further notice. 

 
The 2021/22 Pay Award 
 

11. The National Employers have made a final offer on the pay award for 2021/22 as 
follows: 
   

i. With effect from 1 April 2021, an increase of 2.75 per cent on NJC pay  
point 1 

ii. With effect from 1 April 2021, an increase of 1.75 per cent on all NJC pay 
points 2 and above 

iii. Completion of the outstanding work of the joint Term-Time Only review 
group. (This was established as part of the 2016-18 pay deal to undertake a 
joint review of term-time working to consider “an NJC approach to deliver 
fair, consistent and transparent contracts for school support staff and term-
time only staff not employed in schools”. The review is taking much longer 
than originally anticipated due to the complex nature of the issues under 
discussion). 

 
12. For Leicestershire County Council this means that the locally agreed pay spine in 

respect of grade 2 will need to be reviewed, should the offer be accepted by the trade 
unions nationally. Currently Unite, Unison and GMB are entering into ballots with 
their members advising them to reject the offer. The initial trade union request was 
for a 10% pay increase across the board.  

 
An offer of 1.75% has also been made in respect of Chief Officers and Chief 
Executives.  

 
Recommendation 
 
13. The Employment Committee is asked to  

 
a. approve the Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 for submission to the County 

Council for approval at its meeting on 1 December 2021; and 
   

8



 

b. Note that, following agreement of the 2021/22 pay offer at national level, the 
2021/22 pay structure incorporating the NJC 2021/22 pay award will be 
circulated to the Committee.  

 
Background Papers  
 
None. 
 
Circulation under Local Issues Alert 
 
None. 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
14. The grading of all posts in the Council, except Centrally Employed Teachers, is 

determined using the nationally recognised Hay Job Evaluation Scheme. This is in 
order to ensure that all posts are graded and therefore rewarded financially through a 
fair and non-discriminatory process, that there is consistency in treatment between 
posts and that the Council complies with equal pay legislation.   

 
Appendix  
 
Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Gordon McFarlane, Assistant Director - Corporate Services  
Email:  gordon.mcfarlane@leics.gov.uk 
Tel: 0116 305 6123 
 
 

9

mailto:gordon.mcfarlane@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Pay Policy Statement 2022/2023 
Version: 2021-1  
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 1 of 13 

Appendix A 
 

a 
 

Pay Policy Statement - 2022/2023 
 
Contents 
Purpose ..................................................................................................................... 1 
Scope ........................................................................................................................ 2 

Definitions ................................................................................................................. 2 

Pay and Grading Structure ...................................................................................... 3 

Remuneration on Appointment ............................................................................... 4 
Market Premia ........................................................................................................... 4 
Incremental Progression ......................................................................................... 5 
Additional Payments ................................................................................................ 5 

Other Allowances ..................................................................................................... 6 
Bonus Payments ...................................................................................................... 6 
Pension Benefits ...................................................................................................... 6 

Honoraria .................................................................................................................. 7 
Salary Protection ...................................................................................................... 7 

Severance Payments ............................................................................................... 8 
Re-Engagement of Employees ................................................................................ 8 
Publication and Access to Information .................................................................. 9 

Appendix A - Senior Management Remuneration 2020/2021 ............................. 10 

Appendix B - Pay and Grading Structure ............................................................. 12 
 
 

Purpose 
 
As a responsible employer Leicestershire County Council is committed to delivering 
a fair, equitable and transparent policy covering pay and other employee benefits 
which improves flexibility in delivering services and provides value for money. 
 
Within the framework of its terms and conditions of employment, the Council aims to 
develop and maintain appropriate pay systems and benefit packages to attract and 
retain motivated, flexible people who take responsibility, work as a team, improve 
performance and acquire new skills. 
 
This Pay Policy Statement sets out the Council’s policies relating to the pay of its 
workforce for the period from 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022, in particular the:  
 
 

 Remuneration of chief officers 
 Remuneration of the lowest-paid employees 

11



 
 

Pay Policy Statement 2022/2023 
Version: 2021-1  
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 2 of 13 

 Relationship between the remuneration of chief officers and employees who 
are not chief officers.  

 
The statement meets the Council’s obligations under the Localism Act 2011 and will 
enable the elected members of the Council to make decisions on pay.   
  
The Council’s Pay Policy Statement will be agreed by Full Council before the 
beginning of each financial year and will then be published on the County Council’s 
website (Click here).  The statement may also be amended by Full Council during 
the course of the year if necessary. 
 

Scope 
 
This statement applies to all employees of Leicestershire County Council employed 
under the conditions of service of the following bodies: 
  

 National Joint Council for Local Government Services. 

 Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Officers of Local Authorities. 

 Joint Negotiating Committee for Local Authority Chief Executives. 

 School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions (for Centrally Employed Teachers) 

 Soulbury Committee. 
 

It is not applicable to employees based in schools and colleges with delegated 
budgets. 
 

Definitions 
 
For the purposes of this Pay Policy Statement the following definitions will apply: 
 
Remuneration  
This includes three elements: 

 Basic salary; 

 Pension; 

 Any other allowances arising from employment. 
 
Chief Officers 
Under the Localism Act 2011 a Chief Officer is defined as: 

 The head of the Council’s paid service designated under section 4(1) of the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 

 Its monitoring officer designated under section 5(1) of that Act  

 A statutory chief officer mentioned in section 2(6) of that Act  

 A non-statutory chief officer mentioned in section 2(7) of that Act  

 A deputy chief officer mentioned in section 2(8) of that Act. 
 

In Leicestershire County Council this definition would apply to the posts set out in 
Appendix A.  
 

12

http://www.leics.gov.uk/index/your_council/council_publications/open_data.htm


 
 

Pay Policy Statement 2022/2023 
Version: 2021-1  
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 3 of 13 

Definition of a Day’s Pay 
The definition of a day’s pay is the hours worked on the day multiplied by the 
employee’s hourly rate of pay. 
 
Lowest Paid Employees 
This refers to employees on Grade 2, Pay Point 1.  This definition has been adopted 
as it is the lowest level of remuneration attached to a post within the Council.  The 
lowest pay point value with effect from 1 April 2020 was £9.25, which exceeded the 
projected National Living Wage rate at that date.  
 

Pay and Grading Structure 
 
The grading of all posts in the Council, except Centrally Employed Teachers, is 
determined using the nationally recognised Hay Job Evaluation Scheme.  This is in 
order to ensure that all posts are graded and therefore rewarded financially through 
a fair and non-discriminatory process, that there is consistency in treatment between 
posts and that the Council complies with equal pay legislation.  The scheme is an 
analytical one that takes into consideration three key elements of a post: 
 

 Know How - the levels of knowledge, skill and experience (gained through 
work experience, education and training) which are required to perform the 
job successfully; 

 Problem Solving - the complexity of thinking required to perform the job 
when applying Know How; 

 Accountability - the impact the job has on the organisation and the 
constraints that the job holder has on acting independently. 

  
Part of the guidance from Hay when introducing the scheme was that there should 
be a minimum of a 33.3% differential between the Chief Executive and the highest 
paid Chief Officer. 
 
Basic pay is paid in accordance with the evaluated grade of the post.  Each grade 
comprises a range of pay points.  A copy of the Council’s pay and grading structure 
is attached at Appendix B.   
 
The introduction of the National Living Wage with effect from 1 April 2016 had a 
substantial impact upon the Council’s pay structure, in particular the lowest pay 
grades. This was further compounded by the implementation of subsequent pay 
awards which followed the national pay awards made by the NJC. From 1st April 
2019, a revised pay structure was established which ensured that the provisions set 
out by the NJC pay award for 2019/20 were met. The Council’s revised pay structure 
also addressed several other priorities including the introduction of meaningful 
progression, addressing some of the Council’s recruitment and retention challenges, 
and some ability to accommodate future pay awards as appropriate.  
 
Annual pay awards for all employees except Centrally Employed Teachers and 
those employed on Soulbury Committee conditions will be agreed by Employment 
Committee having regard to any agreement reached by the relevant national 

13



 
 

Pay Policy Statement 2022/2023 
Version: 2021-1  
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 4 of 13 

negotiating bodies. The current pay award for all employees up to and including 
Grade 17 follows the national award made by the National Joint Council for Local 
Government Employees and covers the period up to 31 March 2021.  
 
A pay award covering the same period was agreed for employees on Joint 
Negotiating Committee (JNC) terms and conditions for Chief Officers, and JNC terms 
and conditions for Chief Executives.   
 
Annual pay awards for centrally employed teachers and those on Soulbury 
Committee conditions will be in accordance with those agreed by the respective 
national bodies. 
 
Details of the national pay scales for Centrally Employed Teachers are available on 
the Department for Education’s website.  
 
Employees in post when a pay award is due but who subsequently leave the Council 
before it is implemented are entitled to receive the difference in pay.  To claim 
backdating from their date of leaving they must contact the Employee Service 
Centre, 0300 3030222, or email escservicedesk@emss.org.uk.  
 
Details of senior management remuneration are published annually on the Council’s 
website as part of this Pay Policy Statement (Click here) and in the Council’s 
Statement of Accounts.  A copy of the information for 2019/2020 contained in the 
Pay Policy Statement is attached at Appendix A.   
 
The ‘pay multiple’ - the ratio between the highest paid full-time equivalent (FTE) 
salary (Grade 22) and the median average salary of the Council’s workforce - is 
1:9.41 (excluding schools). 
 

Remuneration on Appointment 
 
All employees are usually appointed to the minimum pay point applicable to the 
grade of the post.  If the employee is already being paid above the minimum pay 
point, managers have discretion in some circumstances to appoint to a higher pay 
point, subject to the maximum of the grade. 
 
Where it is necessary for a newly appointed employee to relocate in order to take up 
a post, the Council may make a contribution towards the reimbursement of relocation 
expenses in line with the Relocation Policy.  
 
Employment Committee is given the opportunity to consider salary packages over 
£100,000 before new posts are established and advertised. 
 
 

Market Premia 
 
There is provision for the award of market premia where a job has been evaluated 
under the Hay Job Evaluation Scheme and the resulting salary is proven to be out of 

14

http://www.education.gov.uk/schools/careers/payandpensions/teacherspayandconditionsdocument/
http://www.leics.gov.uk/index/your_council/council_publications/open_data.htm
http://website/index/your_council/budget/statement_of_accounts.htm
http://website/index/your_council/budget/statement_of_accounts.htm


 
 

Pay Policy Statement 2022/2023 
Version: 2021-1  
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 5 of 13 

step with the market rate for the job.  The award of market premia is subject to the 
agreement of the Chief Executive in consultation with the Chairman or Vice 
Chairman of the Employment Committee.  If approved, market premia are awarded 
for a two-year period.  Details of the scheme can be found in the Council’s Market 
Premia Policy and Procedure. 
 

Incremental Progression 
 
Centrally Employed Teachers  
A locally agreed Pay Policy for Centrally Employed Teachers is in place from April 
2014. 
 
Soulbury Employees 
Employees covered by the Soulbury Agreement are eligible to receive annual 
increments on 1st September each year until they reach the maximum for the grade 
of their job. 
 
Other Employees 
Subject to one year’s satisfactory service in the grade, employees are eligible to 
receive annual increments on 1st April each year until they reach the maximum pay 
point for the grade of their job.  Where circumstances warrant, accelerated 
increments may be granted by a Chief Officer.   
 
Career Graded Posts 
Employees subject to career grade schemes will progress in line with the 
arrangements for that post. 
 

Additional Payments 
 
Employees are eligible to receive a flat-rate enhancement for working at night. 
 
Employees are eligible to receive enhancements for working on public holidays. 
 
Employees in posts graded 1-9 who work additional hours are eligible to receive 
payment at plain time rate for hours worked; employees in Grades 10-14 who work 
additional hours are not eligible to be paid, but may receive time off in lieu (other 
than in exceptional circumstances, as set out in the Council’s Smarter Working 
Policy); and for employees in Grades 15 and above, there is no entitlement to pay or 
time off in lieu for working additional hours.  Details of these provisions are set out in 
the Council’s Pay Arrangements Policy. 
 
Employees required to “sleep in” on the premises receive an allowance as agreed by 
the National Joint Council for Local Government Services. 
Employees required to participate in a standby rota due to the nature of their job will 
receive an allowance based on that agreed by the National Joint Council for Local 
Government Services as part of the annual pay award. 
 
 

15



 
 

Pay Policy Statement 2022/2023 
Version: 2021-1  
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 6 of 13 

Other Allowances 
 

All senior officers on grade 18 and above receive allowances as detailed in the 
Conditions of Service of the Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Officers of Local 
Authorities and the Joint Negotiating Committee for Local Authority Chief Executives.   
However, where these conditions are silent, or do not cover an allowance or 
process, the Chief Executive and senior officers receive the same as those 
employees covered by the National Joint Council for Local Government Services. 
 
A copy of the School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions document can be found on the 
Department for Education’s website.  Copies of the conditions of service for all other 
employees covered by this statement can be requested from the Local Government 
Employers.   
 
Professional Fees 
The Council reimburses annual registration or comparable fees to employees who 
are unable to practise their professions unless such fees are paid.  Professional fees 
are also paid to employees who are being sponsored to undertake training leading to 
a professional qualification.  However, once the qualification has been gained, the 
individual will become responsible for paying their own professional fees.  
 
The Council pays the annual subscription for Chief Officers to Societies of Chief 
Officers and similar organisations.  
 
Car Allowances 
All posts, including Chief Officers, within Leicestershire County Council may claim 
mileage paid at HRMC rates for business travel.  The Council operates a car benefit 
salary sacrifice scheme, open to all eligible employees. 
 
First Aid Allowances 
Employees who are classified as a ‘designated first-aider’ are eligible to receive an 
allowance. 
 
All designated first-aiders (but not appointed persons) will receive an allowance of 
1% of the salary for pay point 5, pro rata to hours worked. The allowance will not be 
used in calculating any enhancements.  
 

Bonus Payments 
 
The Council does not pay any group of employees a bonus.   
 

Pension Benefits 
 
Centrally Employed Teachers 
All Centrally Employed Teachers are eligible to join the Teachers’ Pension Scheme.  
Employees within Leicestershire Youth Service and Leicestershire Adult Learning 
Service may also join if their role gives eligibility to join the scheme.   The scheme is 

16

http://www.education.gov.uk/schools/careers/payandpensions/teacherspayandconditionsdocument/
http://www.lge.gov.uk/
http://www.lge.gov.uk/


 
 

Pay Policy Statement 2022/2023 
Version: 2021-1  
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 7 of 13 

a statutory scheme with contributions from employees and employers.  Details of the 
scheme can be found on the Teachers' Pension Scheme website. 
 
Other Employees 
All employees under the age of 75 are eligible to join the Local Government Pension 
Scheme.  The scheme is a statutory scheme with contributions from employees and 
employers.  Details of the scheme can be found on www.leics.gov.uk/pensions. 
 
The scheme allows for the exercise of discretion on the enhancement of retirement 
benefits.  The Council will consider each case on its merits but has determined that 
its usual policy is not to enhance benefits for any of its employees. 
 
The scheme provides for flexible retirement.  To be eligible to request flexible 
retirement, the Council requires that an employee must either reduce their working 
hours by a minimum of 40% and/or be appointed to a post on a lower grade.  In 
applying this provision no distinction is made between employees.   
 
Under the Local Government Pension Scheme, employees who return to work after 
drawing their pension will not have their pension abated (i.e. reduced or suspended) 
except where they have been previously awarded “added years”. 
 
The Council does not award “added years” to employees and has not done so since 
2006.   
 

Honoraria 
 
Subject to certain conditions, employees (excluding Centrally Employed Teachers) 
who are temporarily required to undertake some or all of the duties of a higher 
graded post are eligible to be paid an honorarium.  Details of the scheme can be 
found in the Council’s Honorarium and Acting-Up Policy and Procedure. 
 

Salary Protection 
 
Details of the Council’s salary protection provisions that apply to employees who are 
redeployed into a new post as a result of organisational change can be found in the 
Council’s Organisational Change Policy and Procedure.   
 
Details of the Council’s salary protection provisions that apply to employees whose 
post is downgraded as a result of a grading review can be found in the Council’s Job 
Evaluation Guidance. 
 
The provisions relating to safeguarding (pay protection) set out in the School 
Teachers Pay and Conditions Document apply to centrally employed teachers.  
Other Council employees are eligible to receive salary protection for a period of up to 
one year if they are redeployed into a lower-graded post, with the amount of 
protection depending on the difference between the grades of their former job and 
new job. 
 

17

http://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/
file:///C:/Users/sashort/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/PJRose/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/2013/27.11.13/Pay%20Policy%20Statement%202014-2015.doc


 
 

Pay Policy Statement 2022/2023 
Version: 2021-1  
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 8 of 13 

Severance Payments 
 
Early Retirement (Efficiency of Service) 
The Local Government Pension Scheme allows employers certain discretionary 
powers but the Council’s usual policy is not to enhance pension benefits for any 
employee. Therefore, there are no provisions for employees to seek early retirement 
on the grounds of efficiency of the service. 
 
Redundancy 
The Council has a single redundancy scheme which applies to all employees.  
Redundancy payments are calculated in accordance with the Employment Rights 
Act 1996 and the 2006 Discretionary Compensation Regulations and are based on 
the employee’s age, length of continuous local government service and salary.  
Details of the redundancy scheme can be found in the Council’s Organisational 
Change Policy and Procedure. 
 
The Council does not provide any further payment to employees leaving the 
Council’s employment other than in respect of accrued annual leave.   
 
Employees who have TUPE transferred into the Council on redundancy terms which 
are more favourable than those detailed above will retain these provisions as per 
TUPE legislation. 
 
Full Council will be given the opportunity to vote on severance packages over 
£100,000 before they are approved. 
 

Re-Engagement of Employees 
 
Where employees have left the Council’s employment due to voluntary redundancy 
(with or without release of pension benefits) or settlement agreement within the last 
12 months, re-engagement will only be considered in exceptional circumstances 
where there is a business critical reason.  Details can be found in the Council’s 
Policy on the Re-Engagement of Former Employees1. 
 
The above restriction does not apply where an employee was dismissed on the 
grounds of voluntary redundancy but without an entitlement to a redundancy 
payment and/or pension benefits, or where an employee was made compulsorily 
redundant.   
 
Where it is agreed that a former employee should be offered re-employment with the 
Council during the 12 month non re-engagement period, the individual will be 
required to repay either all or a proportion of the severance payment received from 
the Council.  The amount to be recovered will depend on the time that has elapsed 

                                            
1
 Please note that the term voluntary redundancy does not apply to those employees who have 

volunteered to be made compulsorily redundant.  
 

18



 
 

Pay Policy Statement 2022/2023 
Version: 2021-1  
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 9 of 13 

since they received the payment.  The individual must be advised of this requirement 
when they are provisionally offered the post. 
 
Any necessary adjustments to pension would be made in accordance with the 
scheme regulations. 
 
Employees who are offered another post with any organisation covered by the 
Modification Order Act prior to their redundancy leaving date and commence this 
post within 4 weeks of that date are not eligible to receive their redundancy payment. 
 

 

Publication and Access to Information 
 

This Pay Policy Statement will be published on the Council’s website, together with 
the Council’s pay and grading structure and information relating to senior 
management remuneration.  

 
 

19



 
 

 
Pay Policy Statement 2021/22 
Version: 2021-1 
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 10 of 13 

Appendix A - Senior Management Remuneration 2020/2021 
 

The information below shows the total pay received by Senior Officers (as defined in 
the Localism Act) within the County Council for the financial year 2020/21.  It does 
not include Head Teachers. The figures include taxable benefits i.e. lease car 
payments made for these positions during the year 2020/21.  
 
All the jobs listed below have been ranked in terms of level of responsibility within a 
job evaluation framework applied to all County Council employees (excluding 
teaching staff). Rates of pay have then been determined with reference to market 
rates within similar local government authorities.  
 

Post title  Total Pay 

  £’000 

Chief Executive's Department 

Chief Executive 208 

Director of Law and Governance 126 

Assistant Chief Executive 98 

Head of Regulatory Services 70 

Public Health 

Director of Public Health        139 

Corporate Resources 

Director of Corporate Resources – S151 Officer 134 

Assistant Director - Corporate Services 122 

Assistant Director – Commercial & Customer Services 58 

Assistant Director – IT, Comms, Commercial & Customer 
Services 

46 

Assistant Director – Finance, Strategic Property & 
Commissioning 

100 

Children and Family Services 

Director of Children & Family Services 134 

Assistant Director - Targeted Early Help and Children’s 
Social Care 

116 

Assistant Director – Education and SEND 98 

Adults and Communities 

Director of Adults and Communities 139 

Assistant Director - East 98 

Assistant Director - Strategy 107 

Assistant Director - West 89 

Environment and Transportation 

Director of Environment and Transportation 134 

Assistant Director - Development and Growth 116 

Assistant Director - Highways and Transport Operations 98 

Assistant Director - Environment and Waste Management  98 

Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation (ESPO) 

20



 
 

 
Pay Policy Statement 2021/22 
Version: 2021-1 
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 11 of 13 

Director of ESPO 139 

Assistant Director - Procurement & Compliance 94 

Assistant Director - Operations 98 

 
 

 

 

21



 
 

 

Appendix B - Pay and Grading Structure  
 

 
Leicestershire County Council Grade Structure 

 
April 2019 – March 2021  

 

Grade 
Pay Point 

Salary 
from 

Hourly 
Rate 

Salary 
from 

Hourly 
Rate 

1 April 
2019 

1 April 
2019 

1 April 
2019 

1 April 
2020 

1 April 
2020 

2 
1 £17,367 £9.00 £17,850 £9.25 

2 £17,538 £9.08 £18,021 £9.33 

3 
3 £17,712 £9.17 £18,201 £9.43 

4 £17,862 £9.25 £18,354 £9.51 

4 
5 £18,066 £9.36 £18,564 £9.62 

6 £18,246 £9.45 £18,750 £9.71 

5 
7 £18,426 £9.54 £18,933 £9.81 

8 £18,795 £9.74 £19,314 £10.00 

6 
9 £19,173 £9.93 £19,701 £10.20 

10 £19,554 £10.13 £20,094 £10.41 

7 

11 £19,947 £10.33 £20,496 £10.62 

12 £20,346 £10.54 £20,907 £10.83 

13 £20,751 £10.75 £21,324 £11.05 

14 £21,168 £10.96 £21,750 £11.27 

8 

15 £21,591 £11.18 £22,185 £11.49 

16 £22,464 £11.64 £23,082 £11.96 

17 £22,911 £11.87 £23,541 £12.19 

18 £23,838 £12.35 £24,495 £12.69 

9 

19 £24,801 £12.85 £25,485 £13.20 

20 £25,296 £13.10 £25,992 £13.46 

21 £26,319 £13.63 £27,045 £14.01 

22 £26,925 £13.95 £27,666 £14.33 

10 

23 £27,936 £14.47 £28,704 £14.87 

24 £29,013 £15.03 £29,811 £15.44 

25 £30,147 £15.62 £30,978 £16.05 

26 £31,377 £16.25 £32,241 £16.70 

11 

27 £32,094 £16.62 £32,979 £17.08 

28 £32,883 £17.03 £33,789 £17.50 

29 £33,732 £17.47 £34,662 £17.95 

30 £34,653 £17.95 £35,607 £18.44 

22



 
 

 

12 

31 £35,727 £18.51 £36,711 £19.02 

32 £36,867 £19.10 £37,881 £19.62 

33 £38,085 £19.73 £39,132 £20.27 

34 £39,405 £20.41 £40,491 £20.97 

13 

35 £40,701 £21.08 £41,820 £21.66 

36 £42,042 £21.78 £43,200 £22.38 

37 £43,452 £22.51 £44,649 £23.13 

38 £44,964 £23.29 £46,203 £23.93 

14 

39 £46,413 £24.04 £47,691 £24.70 

40 £47,952 £24.84 £49,272 £25.52 

41 £49,584 £25.68 £50,949 £26.39 

42 £51,351 £26.60 £52,764 £27.33 

15 

43 £53,016 £27.46 £54,474 £28.22 

44 £54,768 £28.37 £56,274 £29.15 

45 £56,601 £29.32 £58,158 £30.12 

46 £58,512 £30.31 £60,123 £31.14 

16 

47 £60,846 
 

£62,520 
 

48 £63,327 
 

£65,070 
 

49 £65,982 
 

£67,797 
 

50 £68,919 
 

£70,815 
 

17 

51 £71,976 
 

£73,956 
 

52 £75,180 
 

£77,247 
 

53 £78,543 
 

£80,703 
 

54 £82,068 
 

£84,327 
 

 

23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE:  16 SEPTEMBER 2021  
 

WELLBEING UPDATE  
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

Purpose 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Employment Committee of the 
outcome of the third Staff Wellbeing Survey undertaken in May 2021 and the 
establishment of the Corporate Wellbeing Board. 

 
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 
  

2. Staff wellbeing is a key part of the Council’s People Strategy 2020-2024.  
 

3. At its meeting on 3 December 2020, the Committee was informed of the 
actions undertaken by the Council to support staff wellbeing during the Covid-
19 pandemic and this included details of the results from the second 
Wellbeing Survey undertaken in October 2020.  

 
Wellbeing surveys 
 

4. To understand the impact of the pandemic on employees, the Council 
undertook an initial Wellbeing Survey in May 2020 and a further one in 
October 2020. 
 

5. In May 2021 the third Wellbeing Survey was launched, which was a shorter 
‘snapshot’ survey. 

 
Wellbeing survey – round 3  
 

6. The percentage of staff responding to the Survey have reduced over time. 
Response rates are as follows: 
 
Survey 1  Survey 2  Survey 3 
44%   33%   23%  
 

Survey Results from round 3 
 

7. Overall staff feel that the Council’s response to the pandemic and the 
communication with them has been very positive and that as a result they 
have felt consistently well informed. Staff satisfaction levels on this issue have 
not changed significantly since the second round of the survey.  
 

8. Levels of worry have increased slightly since the second round of the survey 
(0.5%) in relation to impact on communities and service users. 

25 Agenda Item 9



 

9. Levels of worry have decreased for impact upon “your role/job” by 14%, and 
worry in relation to “your health, safety and wellbeing” have decreased by 2% 
since the second survey.   
 

10. The results for the question “how well informed do you feel from your 
manager” have remained consistently high across all Surveys and are 
illustrated below.  
 
Survey1  Survey2  Survey3 
88.2   87.8%   88.5% 

 
Action taken since Wellbeing Survey 2 
 

11. The previous report considered by the Committee on 3rd December 2020 
detailed a number of actions which were in progress.  These actions are still 
in place and are being implemented through the Corporate Wellbeing Board 
Action Plan and Departmental Wellbeing groups.  

 
People Strategy and Wellbeing  
 

12. The People Strategy, 2020 - 24, outlines the Council’s commitment and plans 
in relation to wellbeing. 
 

13. Through engaging with staff and feedback from the counselling service, it was 
clear that four key areas were of main concern to staff. These were: stress 
management, bereavement, anxiety and depression.  To address these key 
concerns, four topic areas will inform the majority of wellbeing support and 
activities.  These are sleep, physical exercise, mindfulness and resilience. 
 

14. In addition, the approach, framework and governance in relation to wellbeing 
has been reviewed by People Services to ensure that the support is fit for 
purpose. 
 

15. In response to this, a Corporate Wellbeing Board has been set up. The Board 
is chaired by an Assistant Director, supported by Health, Safety and 
Wellbeing and Public Health colleagues.  
 

16. Each department is represented on the Board and representatives will be 
responsible for implementing wellbeing initiatives within their departments, 
supported by the Corporate Resources People Services Wellbeing Task 
Group. 
 

17. The departmental representatives will be key to ensuring that wellbeing 
initiatives are appropriate and accessible to the various services across the 
Council. 
 

18. The diagram below illustrates the structure of the Corporate Wellbeing Board. 
 

26



 
 

 
 

19. The Corporate Wellbeing Board’s Action Plan detailing activity that will be 
undertaken to improve staff wellbeing and awareness is attached at the 
Appendix for information.  

 
Next steps 
 

20. The Corporate Wellbeing Board will continue to meet on a quarterly basis and 
to implement the agreed plan alongside colleagues across the Council. 
 

21. The Employment Committee will be provided with regular updates. 
 
Conclusion 
 

22. The results from round 3 illustrate a consistent satisfaction with how the 
Council is managing the pandemic and how managers are communicating 
with employees. 
 

23. The results from round 3 do indicate that staff are significantly less worried 
about their job/role but are slightly more concerned about the impact upon 
services users and the community. 

  
24. The Corporate Wellbeing Board will consider the results from round 3 which 

will help to inform the Wellbeing Action Plan.   
 

  

27



Recommendation  
 

25. The Employment Committee is asked to note the continued focus on staff 
wellbeing and resilience across the Council, the results of the third Wellbeing 
Survey, the establishment of the Corporate Wellbeing Board and the 
Wellbeing Action Plan (appended to the report).  

 
Background papers 
  
Report to the Employment Committee 3 December 2020 – Wellbeing Survey – 
Results and Action Plan  
http://cexmodgov1/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=212&MId=6187&Ver=4 
 
Report to the Employment Committee 17 September 2020 – Covid-19 – Staff 
Wellbeing Update  
http://cexmodgov1/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=212&MId=6186&Ver=4 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 
  
None.  
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications  
 
None. 
 
Appendix 
 
Wellbeing Action Plan 2021-23 
 
Officer(s) to contact 
 
Gordon McFarlane, Assistant Director - Corporate Services 
Tel: 0116 305 6123 
Email: gordon.mcfarlane@leics.gov.uk 
 
Sharon Devlin, HR and Organisational Development Business Partner 
Tel: 0116 305 6744 
Email: sharon.devlin@leics.gov.uk 
 

28

http://cexmodgov1/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=212&MId=6187&Ver=4
http://cexmodgov1/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=212&MId=6186&Ver=4
mailto:gordon.mcfarlane@leics.gov.uk
mailto:sharon.devlin@leics.gov.uk


 

 

APPENDIX 
Wellbeing Action Plan – 2021 - 2023 

What we need to deliver   Purpose Timescales To Be Carried Out By 

Consolidate and widely communicate 
our existing offer and support 
available to employees.  
 
 

 Create an effective comms and marketing plan which 
includes promoting our wellbeing offer. 
 

 Continue to promote and raise awareness of national 
wellbeing days.  

 

September – 
December 2021 and 

on going  

Comms 
 

Wellbeing Delivery 
Group 

 
Departmental 

Wellbeing Reps 

Identify which groups fall into the 
category of front line and hard to 
reach employees. 
  
Establish the most effective methods 
of communication, to increase 
awareness and accessibility of 
wellbeing initiatives. 
 

 To ensure that staff groups who are most in need of the 
support can access it. 
 

 To ensure that all staff can access wellbeing resources 

September – 
December 2021 

Wellbeing Delivery 
Group 

 
Departmental 

Wellbeing 
Representatives 

 
Comms 

Sleep -Share recording from live 
Sleep webinar held, during Health 
and Wellbeing Week.   
 
-Deliver some sleep sessions for 
employees (best practice and advice)  

 One of the first signs of people’s mental state is connected 
with poor sleep patterns.  
 
 

 Sleep can be also more affected during the winter blues 
and sharing some top tips around advice sleep can help 
individuals during the darker days of winter.  

September – 
December 2021 

L&D 
 

HRA / Public Health-
TBC 

 
Wellbeing Delivery 

Group 

Depression - Top tips for managers 
and employees in tackling signs of a 
depressed state, burnout and support 
for employees before they get into 
that frame of mind.  

 To identify early indicators which may lead to individuals 
entering into a depressed state, ensuring help and advice 
is promoted and widely communicated.   

January – March 
2022 

H,S&W A -Wellbeing 
Advisor 

    
Wellbeing Delivery 

Group 

29



 

 

Physical Exercise –  
Create an intranet page to promote 
any new and existing offers:  
 
  

 Physical exercise is critical to maintaining a healthy mind 
and body.  
 

 Previous feedback was shown that physical exercise 
initiatives are very popular.  

March 2022 and 
ongoing  

Comms 
 

Public Health 
 

Wellbeing Advisor  
 

Leicester Yoga  
 

Departmental 
Wellbeing Reps   

Mindfulness – Maintain and promote 
existing offer and programme. (online 
and possible face to face sessions).  
 
-Top tips in adopting a mindfulness 
lifestyle to aid good mental wellbeing.  

 Mindfulness has become a popular offer within 
organisation. 

 
 Promoting mindfulness courses and sessions on the 

intranet, various bulletins and communication channels 
including News for all to raise awareness.  

 
 Communicate tips and advice regarding the connection of 

mindfulness and wellbeing and how to incorporate simple 
techniques.   

On going  Wellbeing Advisor 
   

Comms 
L&D  

 
Wellbeing Delivery 

Group 
  

 Departmental 
Wellbeing Reps 

Resilience – Run existing personal 
resilience courses across the 
organisation.  
 
-Proactive sessions for managing 
mental health and becoming resilient, 
providing tops tips etc.  

 Includes dealing with change(s) and adopting personal 
coping mechanisms to build individual resilience.  

 
 

 Develop resilience course, to be advertised on the Hub 
and offered to all employees.  

 
 

On going  
 
Proactive Resilience 

sessions 

Health, Safety and 
Wellbeing 

 
 

L&D   
 

Wellbeing Delivery 
Group  

Stress Management – Run sessions 
on stress management techniques.  
 
 

 Stress is becoming an increased issue for employees.  October to 
December 2022 

Wellbeing Advisor 
 
   

30



 

 

Anxiety– Identifying early signs and 
managing anxiety).  
 

 Educating employees on why anxiety is experienced, 
including our body’s natural response to it and how to 
identify these signs, to be able to self-control anxiety.  
 

January to March 
2023 

Wellbeing Advisor 
   
 

Bereavement – Communicate 
existing offer of training. 
 
-Promote bereavement counselling 
offer available to all employees.  
 
-Reminder of HR policy regarding 
time off for bereavement. 
 

 Promote existing offer to increase uptake, targeting 
employees who have suffered from bereavement. 

Ongoing 
 
 

On going  
 
 
 

As required 

Wellbeing Advisor 
Comms 

L&D  
 

Comms/ Health, Safety 
and Wellbeing Team  

 
HR Strategy Team 

-Additional wellbeing initiatives to be 
identified and delivered as required in 
response to a particular need. 

 Staff surveys, Wellbeing Board and Departmental 
Wellbeing Representatives may identify a need for 
additional initiatives to be development and delivered as 
an organisation.  

 As required Wellbeing Delivery 
Group  

Departmental 
Wellbeing 

Representatives 

Report progress of the wellbeing 
offer, to be included in the Health 
Safety and Wellbeing annual report to 
CMT.  

 Gather information of wellbeing activities carried out over 
12 months.  

 Annually  Health, Safety and 
Wellbeing Team 

 

31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE – 16 SEPTEMBER 2021 

ATTENDANCE MANAGEMENT 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
Purpose 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to update the Employment Committee on the County 

Council’s overall position on sickness absence as at the end of March 2021.  Due to 
work on reporting, which is still in progress following the implementation of the 
Council’s new Finance and HR system, the report contains the latest set of available 
figures as at 31 March 2021.  

 
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions  
 
2. The Attendance Management Policy supports this report.  No changes to this policy 

are proposed.  
 

Background 
 
3. On 4 February 2021, the Committee considered the Council’s absence position as at 

the end of November 2020.  
 
Sickness absence – current position 
 
4. The table below details the end of year sickness absence levels of the previous 4 

years, quarters 1, 2, 3 and 4 of 2020/21. 
 

Department 16/17 
 

17/18 18/19 
 

19/20 20/21 
Q1 

Jun 20 
 

20/21 
Q2 

Sept 20 
 

20/21 
Q3 

Dec 20 

20/21 
End of year 

Mar 21 
 

Total FTE 
days lost 
01/04/20 – 
31/03/21 

Total cost 
of absence 
01/04/20 – 
31/03/21 

Chief 
Executive’s 

6.03 6.38 7.60 5.38 5.28 4.61 4.38 4.41 1,038 £135,376 

Environment 
&Transport 

9.68 10.09 9.16 8.88 8.46 7.85 7.47 7.04 5,666 £513,792 

Children & 
Family 
Services  

10.05 10.25 10.55 11.12 10.60 10.14 8.99 7.94 8,510 £1,059,565 

Corporate 
Resources 

7.94 8.12 7.39 9.39 8.25 7.25 6.40 5.54 6,443 £579,438 

Adults & 
Communities  

12.57 11.26 10.02 11.74 11.41 11.19 10.54 10.18 12,438 £1,208,438 

Public Health 7.43 6.49 8.57 7.12 6.19 7.20 7.11 5.08 610 £74,161 

LCC total 10.01 9.73 9.18 10.08 9.48 8.94 8.20 7.51 34,705 £3,570,438 

33 Agenda Item 10



ESPO 9.75 11.70 9.55 7.20 6.80 6.64 6.35 6.82 2,250 £203,050 

EMSS 9.27 7.42 7.54 9.69 9.26 8.09 5.25 4.53 707 £69,684 

 
 
5. At the end of the financial year 2020/21 the Chief Executive’s, Environment and 

Transport and Public Health departments are below the corporate target of 7.5 days 
per FTE.  The trend across all departments has been a decrease in absence during 
2020/21 with the Council’s total being at 7.51 FTE days lost.    

 
Reasons for sickness absence  
 
6. Displayed in order of percentage of time lost (greatest first), the table below details 

the top 10 reasons for absence, plus the ‘not disclosed’ category. 
 

Percentage of FTE 
days lost 
12 months 
cumulative 

2019/20 
Sept 
2019  
Q2 

2019/20 
Dec 
2019  
Q3 

2019/20 
Mar 
2020 
Q4 

 

2020/21 
Jun 
2020 
Q1 

2020/21 
Sept 
2020 
Q2 

2020/21 
Dec 
2020 
Q3 

 

2020/21 
Mar 
2021 
Q4 

 

Stress/depression, 
mental health 

30.5% 29.7% 29.2% 28.5% 28.9% 28.7% 30.4% 

Other musculo-
skeletal 

14.8% 13.0% 13.1% 11.4% 10.5% 11.2% 11.5% 

Covid-19 n/a n/a 1.4% 3.6% 5.6% 8.5% 11.5% 

Cancer 6.2% 6.3% 6.3% 7.0% 7.2% 8.2% 8.5% 

Neurological 5.1% 4.8% 5.0% 4.8% 4.9% 5.5% 5.2% 

Back and neck 5.5% 5.3% 5.3% 5.5% 4.9% 5.4% 5.1% 

Gastro-stomach, 
digestion 

8.2% 8.4% 8.4% 7.2% 6.6% 5.7% 4.8% 

Viral infection, not 
cough/cold/flu 

4.5% 4.7% 4.8% 4.4% 4.7% 4.5% 4.3% 

Eye, ear, nose & 
mouth/dental & 
throat 

4.1% 4.5% 4.5% 4.4% 4.0% 3.6% 3.5% 

Cough/cold/flu 5.8% 6.0% 5.9% 5.0% 6.1% 4.7% 3.0% 

Not disclosed 2.7% 3.9% 4.1% 3.6% 4.0% 3.3% 2.8% 

 
 
7. Stress/depression, mental health has continued to be the highest reason for lost time 

due to sickness.  Cancer and Covid-19 also continue to be in the top four reasons.  
Improvements have been made in the level of undisclosed absence.   
 

Changing absence trends 
 
8. The Committee, at its meeting on 4 February 2021, reviewed and discussed the 

reduction in absence levels, in particular categories during the Covid-19 pandemic. 
The table below shows these categories over the pandemic period to 31 March 2021, 
compared with the same period the previous year. 
 
 
 
 

34



 
 
 
 

Reason FTE days lost 
24/03/19- 
31/03/20 

FTE days lost 
24/03/20- 
31/03/21 

FTE lost 
difference  

% 

change  

Cough/cold/flu 2740.2 965.6 -1774.6 -65% 

Gastro-stomach, digestion 3648.0 1626.1 -2021.9 -55% 

Other musculo-skeletal 5582.6 3748.0 -1834.6 -33% 

Viral infection, not cough/cold/flu 2027.4 1418.3 -609.1 -30% 

Back and neck 2431.9 1704.0 -727.9 -30% 

Stress/depression, mental health 12990.4 10125.3 -2865.1 -22% 

Cancer 2867.6 2559.3 -308.3 -11% 

Covid-19 580.8 3417.3 +2836.5 +488% 

Total 32868.9 25563.9 -7305.0 -22% 

 
 
9. The trends which were identified initially in May 2020 have continued; instances of 

absences relating to cough/cold/flu have been 65% lower during the period detailed 
in the table compared to the previous year.   
 

10. Gastro related illness, musculo-skeletal, viral and absence due to back and neck 
injury have also seen significant reductions over the pandemic period. It is possible to 
speculate these changes could be due to the lockdowns and social distancing 
preventing all types of illness caused by germs spreading, and homeworking 
enabling people to continue working with mild symptoms.  Lockdowns together with 
the temporary closure or reduction of services could have led to individuals having 
less opportunity to have physical injuries and/or more opportunity to rest pre-existing 
conditions.  

 
11. Time lost due to mental ill health over the pandemic period has been lower than the 

same period the previous year.  Support for wellbeing will continue to be a priority 
across the Council. 

 
12. Time lost because of cancer has decreased by 11% during the pandemic period 

compared to the previous year. NHS challenges in delivering timely cancer treatment 
during the pandemic may be impacting on our employees and we are taking action to 
support individuals appropriately at this difficult time.    

 
13. Nationally, the Office of National Statistics (ONS) reports that 2020 had the lowest 

levels of sickness absence across all sectors since it started recording absence data 
in 1995.  The position within the Council therefore reflects wider trends.  
 

14. Monitoring of changing absence trends will continue as the pandemic continues and 
people work in and interact with the community in different ways.   

 
  

35



Long and Short-term absence split 
 
15. The table below details the number of FTE days lost due to absence and the 

percentage split of FTE days lost at the end of March 2021.  
 

 

20/21 as at end of March 21 

12 months cumulative 

Department Long term Short term 

FTE days 
lost 

% FTE 
days 
lost 

Individual 
occurrences 

FTE days 
lost 

% FTE 
days 
lost 

Individual 
occurrences 

Chief Executive’s 552.59 54.3% 19 465.37 45.7% 92 

Environment and 
Transport 

3,654.75 61.0% 102 2,335.65 39.0% 503 

Children and Family 
Services 

6,518.87 68.7% 152 2,964.20 31.3% 618 

Corporate Resources 5,233.28 62.0% 143 3,200.93 38.0% 828 

Adults and 
Communities 

8,823.05 67.8% 257 4,189.80 32.2% 894 

Public Health 535.37 75.1% 10 177.49 24.9% 42 

 
Note: Long term is categorised as over 4 weeks of continuous absence.  

 
Service level data 
 
16. The table below provides details of the days lost per FTE at the end of 2016/17, 

2017/18, 2018/19, 2019/20 and at the end of quarter 1, 2, 3 and 4 2020/21 for 
service areas by department. 

 
Department 
 
Days per FTE 
 
12 months 
cumulative 

2016/17 

Year end 

 
(Mar 17) 

2017/18 

Year end 

 
(Mar 18) 

2018/19 

Year end 

 
(Mar 19) 

2019/20 

Year end 

 
(Mar 20) 

2020/21 

End of Q1 

(Jun 20) 

2020/21 

End of Q2 

(Sept 20) 

2020/21 

End of Q3 

(Dec 20) 

2020/21 

 Year end 

(Mar 21 

Chief Executive’s 
6.03 6.38 7.6 5.38 5.28 4.61 4.38 4.41 

Planning and 
Historic and Natural 
Environment 

3.81 4.04 14.92 9.57 9.46 5.00 

2.59 

0.79 

Regulatory Services  
6.95 4.87 6.2 7.24 7.03 5.99 6.05 6.30 

Strategy and 
Business 
Intelligence  

6.28 8.04 6.93 4.26 4.98 4.57 
  
3.70 

3.86 

Democratic Services 
10.69 8.91 14.81 6.70 4.97 2.95 1.67 1.07 

36



Department 
 
Days per FTE 
 
12 months 
cumulative 

2016/17 

Year end 

 
(Mar 17) 

2017/18 

Year end 

 
(Mar 18) 

2018/19 

Year end 

 
(Mar 19) 

2019/20 

Year end 

 
(Mar 20) 

2020/21 

End of Q1 

(Jun 20) 

2020/21 

End of Q2 

(Sept 20) 

2020/21 

End of Q3 

(Dec 20) 

2020/21 

 Year end 

(Mar 21 

Legal Services 3.01 4.02 5.48 3.63 3.28 4.36 5.32 5.82 

Environment and 
Transport  9.68 10.09 9.16 8.88 8.46 7.85 7.47 7.04 

Highways and 
Transport 10.38 10.62 8.96 9.30 9.32 8.95 

 
3.86 

3.99 

Environment and 
Waste Management  4.85 7.98 10.07 12.65 11.27 9.44 

 
8.89 

7.68 

Children and 
Family Services  10.05 10.25 10.55 11.12 10.60 10.14 

 
8.99 

7.95 

Education and 
SEND* 9.13 9.28 8.42 11.55 11.45 10.47 8.71 7.57 

Children’s Social 
Care & Targeted 
Early Help** 

11.90 11.62 14.18 10.54 10.45 10.15 10.07 9.15 

Corporate 
Resources  7.94 8.12 7.41 9.39 8.25 7.25 6.40 5.45 

Finance, Strategic 
Property & 
Commissioning*** 

4.89 4.25 6.63 9.67 8.37 5.47 3.76 2.88 

Corporate Services 
4.68 5.88 4.18 4.84 4.45 4.46 4.38 4.07 

IT, Comms & Digital, 
Commercial and 
Customer 
Services**** 

10.55 10.04 8.91 11.14 9.72 8.72 8.02 6.77 

Adults and 
Communities 12.57 11.26 10.02 11.74 11.41 11.19 10.54 10.18 

East care pathway 
n/a 11.06 9.51 11.32 10.96 10.69 10.57 9.59 

West care pathway 
n/a 13.16 12.01 12.84 12.41 11.27 8.91 9.45 

Commissioning and 
Quality n/a 8.01 8.02 7.46 7.30 6.38 5.44 4.66 

Promoting 
Independence 12.26 15.11 13.26 11.88 10.99 11.65 9.93 11.91 

Personal Care and 
Support 15.62 11.99 13.86 18.10 18.76 20.55 22.10 21.15 

Communities and 
Wellbeing  7.67 7.98 6.97 8.73 7.69 6.61 5.83 4.65 

Public Health 
7.43 6.49 8.57 7.12 6.19 7.20 7.11 5.80 

 *from 1
st
 April 2020 Education & Early Help changed to Education and SEND 

 **from 1
st
 April 2020 Children’s Social Care changed to Children’s Social Care & Targeted Early Help 

***from 1
st
 Nov 2020 Finance & Assurance changed to Finance, Strategic Property & Commissioning 

****from 1
st
 Nov 2020 Commercial & Customer Services to IT, Comms & Digital, Commercial & Customer Services  

37



 
 
Recommendations  
 
17. The Committee is asked to note the update provided on the Council’s overall position 

on sickness absence as at the end of March 2021.  
 
Background papers 
 
18. Report to the Employment Committee 4 February 2021 – Attendance Management.  

http://cexmodgov1/documents/s159534/Attendance%20Management.pdf 

 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 
 
19. None. 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
20. There are no equalities and human rights implications arising directly from this report.  
 
Officer(s) to Contact 
 
Gordon McFarlane  
Assistant Director (Corporate Services)  
Tel: 0116 3056123  
Email: gordon.mcfarlane@leics.gov.uk 
 
Andrea Denham 
HR/OD Business Partner 
Tel: 0116 3055261 
Email: andrea.denham@leics.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 

38

http://cexmodgov1/documents/s159534/Attendance%20Management.pdf
mailto:gordon.mcfarlane@leics.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.denham@leics.gov.uk


 

 
EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE: 16 SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION UPDATE 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 

 
Purpose of report  
 
1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Employment Committee on the Council’s 

approach to staff diversity and inclusion, including data on staff demographics.  
  

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions  
 

2. Leicestershire County Council’s Equalities Strategy 2020-24 was agreed by the 
County Council on 8 July 2020. It sets out how the Council aims to ensure that 
everyone can access high quality services designed to meet their individual needs. 
The Strategy is refreshed every four years and the process includes public 
consultation.  

 
3. Diversity and Inclusion is also a key part of Leicestershire County Council’s People 

Strategy 2020 – 2024. This strategy was approved by the Employment Committee on 
4 February 2021.  

 
4. Reports on the Gender Pay Gap and the outcomes of an Equal Pay Audit have 

previously been considered by the Employment Committee at its meeting on 4 
February 2021.  

 
Background 

 
5. It is believed that a strong, diverse workforce will bring together different perspectives 

and ideas. Externally, it is vital that services meet the needs of the diverse 
communities that live within the county. This report focuses on diversity and inclusion 
relating to the Council’s employment practices.  

 
6. The Council’s People Strategy 2020 – 2024 states:  
 
 “We know that people perform better when they can be themselves, so we take pride 

in creating a work environment where people can be open with colleagues and 
comfortable and confident in being themselves at work.”  

 
7. The aim is to attract, develop and retain a diverse workforce which feels welcomed, 

supported, and reflects the values of the Council. There is a strong commitment to 
allow the workforce to flourish and ensure that all colleagues feel part of an inclusive 
approach.  

 

39 Agenda Item 11



 

8. Out of the nine protected characteristics set out in the Equalities Act 2010, the 
Council largely focuses on three. These are namely race, disability, and sexual 
orientation and they can be evidenced across all areas of the workforce. A corporate 
Equalities Board provides an internal co-ordination point for this work, supported by 
departmental equality groups and staff groups for Black, Asian and Multi-Ethnic 
(BAME) employees, disabled employees, and Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and 
Transgender (LGBT+) employees. A virtual workers’ group for those with caring 
responsibilities is also in place to help provide additional support where required. 
group for those with caring responsibilities is also in place to help provide additional 
support where required.  

 
Current staff demographics 
  
9. As of March 2021, the workforce of the Council includes the following characteristics:  
 

 % of workforce that are BAME    15.8%   

 % of workforce that are disabled    4.7%   

 % of workforce that are LGBT    2.4%  
 
10. Employee declaration rates are also monitored to ensure that the data maintained on 

the workforce is reliable. The more data available, enables better targeting of 
resources. As of the end of March 2021, the following declaration rates could be 
seen: 

 

 % of workforce declaring their ethnicity   85.4% 

 % of workforce declaring their disability   83.4% 

 % of workforce declaring their sexual orientation 60.2% 
 
11. Data is also collected on the success of recruitment processes in attracting a diverse 

applicant base. In 2020, the total demographics of job applicants was as follows: 
 

 % of BAME applicants      36.2% 

 % of disabled applicants     6.5% 

 % of LGBT applicants     6.2% 
 
12. The results of the staff survey undertaken in 2019 detailed: 
 

 92.9% of respondents believe the Council is committed to equality and diversity, 

 90.8% of respondents feel they are treated with fairness and respect at work. 
 
Skills and knowledge development 
 
13. A key part of the Council’s work on diversity and inclusion is to ensure that all 

members of staff have the appropriate skills and knowledge. As a result, reference is 
made to equality and diversity issues throughout all forms of learning and 
development and delivery.  

 
14. Mandatory training on equality and diversity is also provided for all members of staff, 

with an additional course for posts that require the management of people. Other 
training is also available which specifically covers equality and diversity topics (e.g., 
autism awareness, how to undertake equality and human rights impact assessments, 
LGBT awareness, menopause awareness and unconscious bias). Group sessions 

40



 

have also been held across the Council on topics where greater discussion and 
engagement with staff have been beneficial. These ‘Big Conversations’ have recently 
covered topics such as how to consider service provision for individuals who are hard 
of hearing, and sensitive topics such as transgender and race.  

 
External accreditation 
 
15. External accreditation has been provided to the Council on a range of equality and 

diversity issues. Logos from these awards are displayed on the Council’s website 
and recruitment materials so that potential job applicants are aware of the Council’s 
open and welcoming approach, and the values that are held by the organisation.  

 
16. This accreditation includes Level 2 of the Government’s Disability Confident scheme 

which supports employers to make the most of the talents disabled people can bring 
to the workplace. At level 2, organisations are recognised as going the extra mile to 
make sure disabled people get a fair chance. The scheme helps the Council to 
recruit and retain great people, drawing from the widest possible pool of talent, and 
demonstrating that all employees are treated fairly. In addition, the Council has also 
signed the NHS Mindful Employer charter, which recognises employers who are 
working towards better mental health in the workplace.  

 
17. The Council has consistently been rated as one of Stonewall’s Top 100 Employers 

since 2010 and is currently one of only six councils in England to achieve this status. 
This benchmarking tool is used by employers to measure their progress on lesbian, 
gay, bi and trans inclusion in the workplace. The results of a revised Workplace 
Equality Index submission will be announced in early 2022. 

 
18. The Council has also recently announced that it has become a signatory to an 

external Race At Work Charter. This Charter has been created by Business in the 
Community, an established business-led membership organisation dedicated to 
responsible business, founded by HRH The Prince of Wales. Becoming a signatory 
to this external Charter is an important part of the Council promoting equality across 
workplaces, regardless of an individual’s ethnicity and race.  

 
Next steps 
 
19. Whilst many positive outcomes can be evidenced in the areas of diversity and 

inclusion, several actions will still be undertaken to ensure that this focus is 
continued. These include: 
 

 analysing the satisfaction rates in the most recent staff survey, 

 continuing the development and representation of Workers’ Groups, 

 promoting staff self-declaration rates, 

 promoting the importance of equalities training. 
 
20. Diversity and inclusion will continue to be a key focus for the Council, and its 

importance is reflected within the recently refreshed People Strategy. The actions 
above will build upon what is already in place and will also ensure that support is 
available for those staff where it is required. 

 
  

41



 

Conclusions 
 
21. Staff diversity and inclusion is well managed within the Council, with a range of 

evidence demonstrating success in this area, including external accreditation. Plans 
are also in place to ensure that this work and focus continues, with the People 
Strategy having clear aims around how diversity and inclusion is integrated within 
recruitment, redeployment, wellbeing and the management of sickness absence.  
 

Recommendations 
 
22. The Committee is asked to note that:  

 
a. diversity and inclusion is well managed within the Council, having received 

external accreditation for its actions, and 
b. the data collated on staff demographics at paragraphs 9-12 and the next steps 

outlined within the report at paragraph 19 and 20, which aim to further support 
and promote staff diversity and inclusion. 

 
Background papers  
 
23. None. 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure  
 
24. None. 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
25. None. 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Gordon McFarlane  
Assistant Director (Corporate Services)  
Tel: 0116 3056123  
Email: gordon.mcfarlane@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mark Foote 
HR/OD Business Partner 
Tel: 0116 3056447 
Email: mark.foote@leics.gov.uk 
  

42

mailto:gordon.mcfarlane@leics.gov.uk
mailto:mark.foote@leics.gov.uk


 
EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE – 16 SEPTEMBER 2021 

 

HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELLBEING ANNUAL REPORT 2020-
21 

 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to present to the Committee the Annual 

Health, Safety and Wellbeing Report for 2020-21.  This details the County 
Council’s overall position on Health, Safety and Wellbeing and provides 
an update on the performance of the Health, Safety and Wellbeing (HSW) 
Service. 

 
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 
 
2. The County Council is required, under the Management of the Health and 

Safety at Work Regulations 1999, to have in place an occupational health 
and safety management system. This system requires the Council to have 
a Health and Safety Strategy, and to consult and communicate with all 
interested parties on health and safety performance. 
 

3. The Council’s Health and Safety Strategy 2020-2025 details key 
performance indicators for the Council, progress for which is included in 
this Health, Safety and Wellbeing annual report. 

 
4. This report is presented annually to the Committee for information only.  
 
Background 
 
5. The Health, Safety and Wellbeing of staff, service users and customers 

are of paramount importance to the County Council. The HSW Service 
continuously monitors, so far as is possible, performance in this area to 
ensure the County Council meets its legal requirements and, where 
necessary, improves standards. 

 
6. The report attached as an Appendix highlights the work that has been 

undertaken within the HSW Service during the financial year of 2020/21.  
It identifies the risk and hazard areas that impact upon the County Council 
and where improvements need to be made to ensure improved 
compliance and staff safety.  Each Department within the County Council 
has a departmental annual report with a detailed specific plan to improve 
compliance.  

43 Agenda Item 12



 

7. The report is written in summary format to give an overview of the issues 
impacting on the County Council. The following aspects of HSW are 
covered in the report: 

 

 Key facts 

 Accident data 

 RIDDOR reportable and incidents of significance 

 Coronavirus response 

 Training statistics 

 Key performance indicators 

 Wellbeing Service and EAP data 

 Health and safety changes 

 Guidance and legislative changes, including ISO 45001 

 Wellbeing Service annual report 
 
8. The report shows a considerable reduction in the number of injuries and 

RIDDOR reportable incidents compared to the previous year, which can 
be attributed to the coronavirus pandemic. Slips, trips and falls continue to 
be the highest causes of injuries across the Council, followed by 
challenging behaviour, however this figure has reduced since the previous 
year.  
 

9. As a result of the coronavirus pandemic the Health, Safety and Wellbeing 
team have seen an increase in awareness and understanding of health 
and safety, in particular infection control and the importance of risk 
assessment. The service has seen engagement from teams that pre 
pandemic, there was little engagement from requesting support in writing 
risk assessments and requesting advice.  

 
Recommendations 
 
10. It is recommended that the Employment Committee notes the Health, 

Safety and Wellbeing Annual Report 2020-21 and endorses and supports 
the extensive work, undertaken in partnership with departments, by the 
Health, Safety and Wellbeing Service.  

 
Background Papers 
 
11. None. 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 

 
12. None. 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications/Other Impact Assessments 
 
13. There are no equalities and human rights issues arising directly from this 

report. 
 

44



Appendix 
 
Health Safety and Wellbeing Annual Report 2020 - 2021 
 
Officer(s) to Contact 
 
Colin Jones 
Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager 
01163057552 
Colin.Jones@leics.gov.uk 
 
Amy Walling 
Senior Health, Safety and Wellbeing Advisor 
01163050894 
Amy.walling@leics.gov.uk  
 

45

mailto:Colin.Jones@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Amy.walling@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 

 

 

 
Leicestershire County Council 

Annual Health, Safety & 

Wellbeing Performance Report.  
 

April 2020 – March 2021 
 

Author: Amy Walling (Senior HS&W Advisor) 

Contributions by: Oonagh Martin (Wellbeing Advisor) 

 

 

 

 

 

47



 

2 

 

Table of Contents 
Key Facts ............................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Accident Data Analysis April 2020 – March 2021 ................................................................................................. 4 

Location of Accidents (those resulting in injury) .................................................................................................. 5 

RIDDOR Reportable Incidents and Incidents of Significance ................................................................................ 6 

Health and Safety Audits ...................................................................................................................................... 9 

HSE Enforcement Action ....................................................................................................................................... 9 

Coronavirus response ......................................................................................................................................... 10 

Training Statistics ................................................................................................................................................ 12 

Key Performance Indicators ............................................................................................................................... 13 

Wellbeing Activity ............................................................................................................................................... 14 

Recent and Forthcoming Changes ...................................................................................................................... 15 

Guidance and Information .................................................................................................................................. 16 

Conclusion .......................................................................................................................................................... 17 

Appendix 1 The Wellbeing Service Annual Report ............................................................................................. 18 

 

48



 

3 

 

Key Facts 

The Health, Safety and Wellbeing (HSW) Service endeavour to continually monitor HSW performance within the authority in order that improvements can 

be made to ensure legal compliance, financial savings and most importantly the safety of staff, clients, pupils, service users, volunteers and contractors. This 

annual report highlights some of the work that has been undertaken in the past year to put in place proactive measures, to address compliance issues and 

to raise awareness of the appropriate hazards and risks. The report also highlights the action that departments have taken to mitigate risks. 

 522 

Injuries 

 17 
RIDDOR Incidents 

 2121 
Counselling sessions to 

corporate staff 

 187 
COVID inspections (H&S 

only) 

378 
Near Misses 

 182 

Injuries caused by slips 

trips and falls 

 84 
Injuries caused by 

physical assault and 

challenging behaviour 

 1290 
Staff attended Health and 

Safety Courses  

49



 

4 

 

Accident Data Analysis April 2020 – March 2021 

182

65

48

30

27

25

21

19
14 11

Slips, Trip and Falls

Challenging behaviour

Contact with sharp object

Struck by object

Collision

Contact with stationary object

Manual handling

Physical assault

Unknown cause of service user injury

Fall from height

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• During the 2020/2021 financial year 522 accidents which resulted in injury were recorded within the Authority 

(CFS & LA Schools, A&C, CR, CEx, E&T, Public Health and ESPO). This is a 52% decrease in injuries compared to 

2019 / 2020. This drastic reduction can be attributed to the coronavirus pandemic which caused many services 

to halt their operation for a large part of the year.  

• Slips, trips, and falls continue to be the greatest cause of accidents and represent 35% of all accidents within 

the Authority (31% in 2019 / 2020). The H&S team will continue to monitor this trend and are planning to 

launch a campaign in 2021/22 to help reduce the number of slips, trips, and falls. 

• The number of physical assaults and challenging behaviour (resulting in injury) has decreased by 59% 

compared to the previous year. 

• 378 near misses were reported in 2020/2021 – 8% decrease from 2019/2020. 

• 17 RIDDOR incidents were reported in 2020/2021 – compared to 28 in 2019/2020, 39% decrease. 

• 70 violent incidents (this includes physical and verbal abuse) were reported in 2020/2021 – 65% decrease 

from 2019/2020. 

Information within this report has been gained from Leicestershire County Council’s accident and incident reporting 

system, AssessNET on 06/05/2021. 

 

NB: Categories with fewer than 11 have been omitted to enable clarity in the pie chart 

17 RIDDOR reportable incidents occurred across the authority 

378 Near misses were recorded     70 Violent incidents were recorded 

 

50



 

5 

 

Accident Data 

Location of Accidents (those resulting in injury) 

The Council uses the AssessNET system to report all accidents and incidents. The information below shows 

the services that have reported the highest number of injuries throughout the Council. 

Department 

 

Service Area 

 

No. of Injuries 

CFS St Denys Church of England Infant School 28 

CFS Wigston Menphys Nursery School 27 

CR Commercial Services > LTS Catering 27 

ESPO ESPO 20 

CFS Sketchley Hill Menphys Nursery 21 

E&T Highways Operations 31 

A&C Direct Services > Provider Services > Melton Supported Living Service 19 

E&T Recycling and Household Waste Sites 19 

CFS Badgerbrook Primary School 13 

CFS Belton Church of England Primary School 12 

CFS Thorpe Acre Junior School 12 

CFS Maplewell Hall School  12 

A&C Direct Services > Provider Services > Carlton Drive Short Breaks Service 11 

CFS Hinckley Children Family Wellbeing Centre 10 

 

 

 

 

 

51



 

6 

 

RIDDOR Reportable Incidents and Incidents of Significance 

The Council is obliged to comply with the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences 

Regulations 2013. It is a requirement that certain incidents that are more serious are reported to the HSE. 

The following information outlines the incidents by department that have been reported under the RIDDOR 

regulations during 2020/2021.  

Corporate Resources reported 2 RIDDOR incidents within 2020/2021. This has decreased from 10 in 

2019/2020. These incidents are summarised below: 

1. Corporate Facilities and Operations > Hard FM > Sites Development June 2020 

An employee within the Sites Development team was diagnosed with Carpal Tunnel Syndrome in June 2020, 

following several years of health surveillance. Since 2017 his exposure to vibration has been reduced and a 

personal risk assessment was implemented. In his current role the use of vibrating tools is nil.  

2. Commercial Services > LTS Catering, Mowmacre Hill Primary School 08/10/2020 

A School Food Assistant (IP) tripped over an old gas pipe which had been exposed after the kitchen was 

reorganised to allow for social distancing. The employee sustained a fractured ankle and was off work for 

137 days. The investigation found that the trip hazard had not be correctly identified and rectified. Following 

the incident, the gas pipe was removed.  

Other incidents of significance  

3. Corporate Facilities and Operations > Contract and Business Development > Post and Premises 

03/12/2020 

A member of the Premises team fell from the loading bay at County Hall. The employee sustained bruising 

however luckily no further injuries were sustained. The incident highlighted that the employee, who is part of 

the supported employee programme, requires further supervision and support. The Premises Team are in 

the process of seeking advice from Mosaic on how best they can ensure his safety in the workplace. 

Following the incident, the safety of the loading bay was also improved, access to the dock leveller is now key 

controlled and a safe system of work and toolbox talk has been introduced.  

A&C reported 3 RIDDOR incidents within 2020/2021. This has decreased from 5 in 2019/2020. These 

incidents are summarised below: 

1. Adult and Communities > East Care Pathway > Direct Services > Provider Services > Emergency 

Care Team > 17/10/2020 

A Care Worker in the Emergency Care Team slipped while traveling down the stairs in a home. The Care 

Worker sustained a soft tissue injury to her left elbow, resulting in 23 days off work. During the investigation 

it was noted that the stairs in the service user’s home were steep, however the IP was aware of this prior to 

the visit. It was noted that the Care Worker seemed to be focused on calling for advice rather than focusing 

on walking down the stairs at the time of the slip.  

52



 

7 

 

2. Adult and Communities > East Care Pathway > Direct Services > Provider Services > Melton 

Supported Living Service > 06/12/2020 

Whilst cleaning a light fitting on a step ladder an employee sustained an injury to her eye from falling dust, 

resulting in 9 days off work. Following this incident, the service has improved their risk assessments and 

arrangements for using step ladders, lone working, and cleaning light fittings. 

3. Adult and Communities > East Care Pathway > Direct Services > HART > 06/03/2021 

Whilst at a service user’s home a Home Care Assistant suffered a pain in her right shoulder following a 

moving and handling manoeuvre, which resulted in 50 days off work. During the investigation it was 

identified that the injured person already had a weakness in their shoulder which team leaders were not 

aware of and no medical care had been sought. It appeared that correct moving and handling procedures 

were followed. It has been recommended that the team are reminded that they must inform their manager 

if they are injured.  

E&T reported 3 RIDDOR incidents within 2020/2021, compared to 4 in 2019/2020. These incidents are 

summarised below: 

1. Highways Operations 29/09/2020 

Highways Operative sustained a detached knee muscle injury caused by him slipping into an open gully. His 

left leg fell into the gully, causing the injury, which resulted in 199 days off work. The open gully was not 

visible at the time and this combined with the slippery surface caused by the water and silt, meant that his 

foot slipped when placing it onto the kerb. The investigation found that existing risk assessments and 

method statements (RAMS) did not cover the jetting of longitudinal drainage channels which was being 

undertaken at the time. The RAMS have since been reviewed.  

2. Highways Operations 12/01/2021 

Highways Operative was in the process of replacing a street lighting column. The IP was lifting the clay out of 

the hole using a shuv holer when he felt a sharp pain in his left elbow, the injury resulted in 55 days off work. 

The investigation found that there was nothing unusual about the activity and the operative appeared to be 

using the equipment in the right way.  

3. Highways Operations 09/02/2021 

An LCC gritter vehicle slid off the road into a ditch whilst the operative was carrying out winter maintenance 

duties. The driver braked to conduct a 90° corner turn, when the gritter lost traction for a few seconds and 

slid into the ditch. The driver injured his back and was off work for 29 days.  

 

 

53



 

8 

 

LA schools reported 7 RIDDOR incidents within 2020/2021. This has increased from 3 in 2019/2020. These 

incidents are summarised below: 

1. Harby Church of England Primary School – 18/08/2020 

A teacher at the school sustained a fractured wrist from falling from a child’s chair which she had used to 

reach a notice board. The teacher should have used a stepladder which was available. It was recommended 

that the school implement a formal working at height risk assessment which is communicated to all staff 

members.  

2. Kegworth Primary School – 09/09/2020 

A Learning Support Assistant was supporting a child with special needs. In preparation to guide the child out 

during a fire drill, the Learning Support Assistant (IP) had her arm around the child’s back. The child ran in the 

opposite direction which resulted in back pain leading to 18 days off work. The investigation found that the 

IP was too close to the child, therefore she would not have been able to avoid the child’s reaction, also the 

investigation found that there was not a Personal Emergency Evacuation Plan, ‘PEEP’ in place for the child. 

3. The Menphys Centre Wigston – 16/10/2020 

A Class Lead sustained a sprained hip when she fell whilst trying to separate two children by standing in 

between them. The injury resulted in 24 days off work. The investigation found that the IP lost her footing, 

there was no obvious cause of the incident. Behaviour plans were in the place and control measures were 

being followed.  

4. Ashmount School – 18/11/2020 

Whilst a Classroom Support Assistant (IP) was in the playground a student pushed past her to get through the 

gate, the IP fell onto her left wrist causing aggravation to an old injury. The IP was off work for 19 days. 

5. Thythorn Field Community Primary School – 20/11/2020 

A Teaching Assistant was running with a group of children on the field, the Teaching Assistant slipped which 

resulted in a fractured shoulder, the IP was off work for 21 days. The investigation found that the IP was not 

wearing sports shoes, therefore had very poor grip. 

6. New Swannington Primary School – 22/01/2021 

A Teacher slipped on the floor resulting in a fractured elbow. The investigation found that although cleaning 

had taken place earlier that afternoon and wet floor signs had not been displayed, however it is unlikely that 

the floor was still wet when the fall occurred. Therefore, it is unclear what caused the fall. 

7. Ibstock Junior School – 11/02/2021 

The Premises Officer sustained a fractured finger after her finger got stuck when lowering the roller shutter 

blind between the kitchen and the hall. The injury resulted in 21 days off work. The investigation found that 

54



 

9 

 

the IP did not moved her hand out of the way as she would normally do. The risk associated with the shutter 

was not identified in a risk assessment. The school have been advised to review the use of the shutter to 

consider if an alternative can be fitted. 

CFS reported 1 RIDDOR incidents within 2020/2021. This has decreased from 2 in 2019/2020. This incident 

is summarised below: 

1. Children in care and post permanence support team – 27/10/2020 

A member of staff within the team named above slipped and fell whilst making a drink in the breakout area 

in room 500, this resulted in a radical fracture near the elbow. The cause of the fall was unknown at the time 

as there was no slip or trip hazard.  

ESPO reported 1 RIDDOR incidents within 2020/2021. This has decreased from 2 in 2019/2020. This 

incident is summarised below: 

1. ESPO, Mezzanine Floor – 13/10/2020 

A Warehouse Operative was changing a roll of paper used for packaging, and while doing so strained her 

wrist. She was subsequently off work for 20 days. CCTV identified that poor manual handling techniques 

were being used at the time of the injury. Since the incident the packing benches have been moved to allow 

the paper roll to be replenished from the back to avoid overreaching.  

Health and Safety Audits 

Due to the coronavirus pandemic a decision was made by senior managers within Corporate Resources to 

suspend all planned H&S audits, due to the uncertainty at the time and the rapidly changing priorities.  

Audits are planned to recommence in April 2021. 

Although no formal audits took place many health and safety inspections took place as part of the Covid-19 

recovery project. 

HSE Enforcement Action 

The council was not subject to any enforcement action from the HSE.   

55



 

10 

 

Coronavirus response 

During the initial wave of the coronavirus pandemic the H&S team were heavily involved in supporting 
services that remained operational. The team were supporting with writing risk assessments and advising on 
infection control and PPE requirements. 
 
The team created guidance information and generic risk assessments. All documents were shared on the 
‘manage health and safety during coronavirus’ intranet page. 
 
The team were also advising the authority on health and safety measures that were needed for home 
workers.  
 
As the first lockdown was coming to an end the Workplace Recovery Team, managed by the Transformation 
Unit, were required to support all services within the authority to recover their premises, making them covid 
secure. 
 
The HS&W team, Operational and Strategic Property Services, with support from IT and Communications 
worked together to implement a programme of support. 
 
To make a workplace covid secure the following measures had to be taken. 

➢ A risk assessment must be completed for each site 

➢ Recovery desks spaced 2m apart must be identified 

➢ One way and give way routes identified 

➢ Cleaning protocols put in place 

➢ Social distancing stickers and hygiene posters displayed 

Together with the site representatives the Workplace Recovery Group ensured that all sites had the signs, 
cleaning products and procedures in place to ensure each site could be signed off as covid secure, in line with 
the dates they were required to reopen. 
 
An inspection checklist was devised to ensure the same safety standards were implemented across all sites. 
To be signed off as covid secure, each premise required an inspection by a H&S or Property Services staff 
member. Monitoring visits were also carried out 3 weeks later to ensure covid secure standards were 
maintained. 
 
Across the whole authority 

220 sites made COVID Secure 

220 risk assessments written and checked 

440 inspections and monitoring visits carried out 

Over 700 monthly checks carried out by services 

4000 safety stickers displayed 
 
A health and safety induction video and staying safe in the workplace guide was created to inform returning 
staff of the changes that were in place to keep everyone safe. 

56

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/HDI/Pages/manage-coronavirus-related-health-and-safety.aspx
https://leicestershiretotara.learningpool.com/course/view.php?id=4648
https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/Services/BUSINESSCONTINUITY/Documents/Staying%20Safe%20in%20the%20Workplace.pdf#search=induction%20video


 

11 

 

As the country went in and out of lockdown the Workplace Recovery Group continued to support premises 
with health and safety arrangements while they were closed and supported the sites with reopening safety 
protocols.  
 
Furthermore, as government guidance changed, i.e. in relation to face coverings and test and trace, the 
Workplace Recovery Group continued to communicate the updates with site responsible managers. 
 
As it emerged that certain demographic and medical factors made some groups more vulnerable to covid 19, 
the H&S team devised a personal risk assessment template in consultation with Public Health.  
 
This risk assessment template was rolled out to the authority in June 2020. The team supported the writing 
of many personal risk assessments for staff who remained within the physical workplace. Furthermore, as 
shielding came to an end the H&S team supported with ensuring personal risk assessments were in place for 
these staff. 
 
The H&S team have created several guidance documents in response to the pandemic including. 
 

➢ How to work from home safely 

➢ How to do workstation exercises 

➢ How to administer first aid during the coronavirus pandemic 

➢ Covid 19 RIDDOR reporting guidance 

➢ Guidance for PPE when administering first aid 

➢ Covid 19 response procedure 

➢ PPE waste guidance 

➢ How to maintain good ventilation in the workplace. 

➢ Sharing of vehicles guidance  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

57

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/Services/HR/Documents/C19-Risk-Assessment-Template-v3.doc


 

12 

 

Training Statistics 

The following section highlights the numbers of delegates from the Council that have attended or completed 

corporate Learning and Development courses provided by the HS&W Service. Note: Figures also exclude job 

specific training which may have a safety consideration and any training which may have been arranged 

directly by managers within the department.                       

Course A&C E&T CFS CE CR PH 

Stress Awareness E-

learning 

30 4 10 0 2 2 

Managing Wellbeing, 

Stress and Pressure 

0 0 11 0 0 0 

COSHH 76 7 12 0 3 0 

Fire Safety E-Learning 48 8 40 1 6 2 

Fire Safety Practical 0 0 16 0 0 0 

Introduction to H&S 

(Mandatory)  

238 58 264 36 111 44 

Legionella Awareness 30 0 10 0 2 1 

Management of H&S 

(Mandatory)  

0 0 29 0 0 0 

Manual Handling 59 6 37 1 9 0 

Principles of Risk 

Assessment 

1 2 15 0 0 0 

Working at Height 21 2 0 2 3 0 

Asbestos Awareness 0 0 11 0 0 0 

Fire Risk Assessment 0 0 11 0 0 0 

Albac Mat 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Evac Chair 0 0 9 0 0 0 

Total 503 87 475 40 136 49 

 

Due to the coronavirus pandemic all face to face training was suspended however essential training took 

place online, using Microsoft Teams. Many of the e-learning courses have also been reviewed this year. 

 

 

 

58



 

13 

 

Key Performance Indicators 

The following Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) were set in the 2020 – 2025 Health and Safety Strategy to 

monitor improvements in Health, Safety and Wellbeing across Leicestershire County Council. The table below 

details the performance of the council against the KPIs. 

Annual Performance 

No. Key Performance Indicator 2020-2021 Performance 

1 

Improve health and safety compliance so 
that there is a 10% reduction in the 
number of major nonconformities 
identified in audits each year. 

As no audits took place in 2020-21 there is no data for 
this KPI. 

2 
All audit report and action plans are 
developed within 5 working days from the 
completion of the audit. 

As no audits took place in 2020-21 there is no data for 
this KPI. 

3 
Achieve a 10% reduction in workplace 
accidents resulting in injury year on year. 

A 52% reduction in injuries was observed this year, 
however due to the pandemic many services were 
closed for much of the year. 

4 
A 10% reduction in RIDDOR reported 
incidents year on year 

A 39% reduction in RIDDOR reportable incidents was 
observed this year, however due to the pandemic many 
services were closed for much of the year. 

5 
All accidents / incidents which are RIDDOR 
reportable will be subject to an accident 
investigation. 

100%  

6 
To achieve a 10% increase in the number 
of Managers trained in Health and Safety.  

At the time of putting this report together this data was 
unavailable. This will be monitoring going forward. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

59



 

14 

 

Wellbeing Activity 

The Wellbeing Service annual report can be found in Appendix 1.  

The data below is in relation to the usage of the internal Wellbeing Service (Counselling Sessions). 

Department 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

New 
referrals 

No. of 
Sessions 

New 
referrals 

No. of 
Sessions 

New 
referrals 

No. of 
Sessions 

New 
referrals 

No. of 
Sessions 

Adults and 
Communities 4 110 11 110 12 136 15 117 

Chief Executives 0 6 2 12 1 19 1 24 

Children and Family 
Service LA Schools 5 135 5 80 9 81 9 52 

Children and Family 
Service Non Schools 4 186 10 108 11 140 7 143 

Corporate Resources 0 84 11 74 9 122 5 123 

Environment and 
Transport 5 53 1 41 3 32 4 42 

Public Health 0 13 2 8 0 22 4 13 

Non-Declared 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 

ESPO 0 7 2 2 0 22 1 3 

Traded 11 105 16 98 14 111 19 117 

Totals 29 700 60 533 59 685 65 634 

         
Overview 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 

Total new referrals 247 304 320 213 

Total sessions 1018 2183 3084 2552 

33% reduction in number of referrals compared to 2019/20 

17% reduction in number of sessions compared to 2019/20 

Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) 

The overall usage of the EAP service has reduced by 1.6%. 

Service Type Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 

Legal & Information 12 7 6 5 30 

Management support 0  0  0 1 1 

Career coaching 0  1  0 0 1 

Emotional support 26  22 19  21 88 

Total 38 30 25 27 120 

60



 

15 

 

Recent and Forthcoming Changes 

Managers and staff within the Department are advised to be aware of the recent HSE safety alerts that could 

impact on service delivery. 

Brexit 

Some health and safety rules and procedures have changed for some industries. There are some new rules 

and procedures in relation to chemicals, civil explosives and work equipment and machinery in our domestic 

market. 

 

UKCA marking 

New products may not be placed on the UK market unless they fully meet the requirements of all product 

legislation relevant to the product. UKCA marking (and CE marking up to 31st December 2021), which is a 

sign of compliance, is required in most cases, as well as product labelling indicating the relevant economic 

operator(s). Manufacturers may only affix the UKCA marking when all the requirements of all UK product 

supply legislation applicable to the product have been met. 

 

ISO 45001  

ISO 45001 has replaced OHSAS 18001 certifications as the new international standard for the management of 

occupational health and safety. ISO 45001 focuses on the same core issue as OHSAS 18001, which is to 

reduce occupational injuries and make organisations a safe and secure place for employees to work. Like 

other ISO standards, ISO 45001 uses a structured framework to integrate policies, processes, and controls. 

 

Throughout 2020 the HS&W team were devising health and safety management system guidance which 

complied with ISO 45001. The HS&W team’s management system was externally audited in April 2021. The 

migration audit took place over 2 days. The auditor noted in the report that ‘many areas of the management 

system audited were deemed best practice resulting in no finding being raised.’ As a result, the team were 

successful in achieving ISO 45001:2018 certification.  ISO 45001 guidance 

documents have been published on the intranet, training resources for 

managers are also available. The HS&W team will continue to support 

managers in embedding ISO 45001 into their processes and procedures.   

Fire Safety Bill 

The Fire Safety Bill was introduced to amend the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. It aims to make 

it clearer where responsibility for fire safety lies in buildings containing more than one home.  

The bill will amend the Fire Safety Order 2005 to clarify that the responsible person or duty-holder for multi-

occupied, residential buildings must manage and reduce the risk of fire for: 

• the structure and external walls of the building, including cladding, balconies, and windows 

• entrance doors to individual flats that open into common parts 

 

Building Safety Regulator Bill 

The Ministry for Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) has published the draft Building 

Safety Regulator Bill ahead of pre-legislative scrutiny, in which HSE is formally named as the new regulator. 

61



 

16 

 

The government has asked HSE to establish a new building safety regulator in the wake of the Grenfell Tower 

disaster and following recommendations in the 'Building a Safer Future' report by Dame Judith Hackitt. 

 

The new regulator will oversee the safe design, construction, and occupation of high-risk buildings so that 

residents are safe and feel safe. It will be independent and give expert advice to local regulators, landlords 

and building owners, the construction and building design industry, and to residents. 

Guidance and Information 

The HS&W Service have been actively engaged in reviewing all the Council’s policy and guidance documents 

available on the Intranet and developing further guidance. This ensures that the policy and guidance given to 

Managers remains relevant, concise, and appropriate to the changing circumstances of the Authority. The 

following table outlines the policies that have been reviewed or developed within the 2020/21 financial year 

and those that are planned for review during the next. Managers are advised to ensure that they are familiar 

with those that are applicable to their operations.  

New Guidance Documents 2020 / 2021  
Reviewed Guidance Documents 

2020 / 2021 

Documents to review in 

2021 / 2022 

How to guides - Work station exercises Blood Borne Viruses & Needlestick 
Injuries  

Use of car seat belts and 
restraint systems 

How to guides - PEEP Stress Management in the 
Workplace 

Working at Height 

How to guides - Administer First aid CV 
19 

Glazing  Microwave guidance 

COVID RIDDOR guidance Winter Gritting and Snow Clearing  Confined spaces 

Manual Handling  Driver and Vehicle Safety Policy  

How to guides - Work from Home Electrical Safety  

How to guides - PPE for first aid CV 19 Fire Safety Guidance  

LOLER Driving in adverse and hot weather  

Whole Body Vibration Asbestos Management Plan  

How to guides - Ventilation CV19 Infection Prevention and Control  

How to guides - Face Coverings CV19 Display Screen Equipment   

COVID Response Procedure   

Electrical pre use checks   

How to guides - Report an Incident   

How to guide - Risk assessment   

Near Miss poster   

62



 

17 

 

Workstation poster   

Abuse poster   

DSE System flow chart   

PPE Waste Guidance – CV19   

Guidance for Vehicle Sharing   

How to Safely Lift a Load   

How to Carry Out Pre-Use Checks   

 

Conclusion 

This report has shown that the number of injuries reported by the Council has reduced by 52% compared to 

the previous year, which is a considerable drop that can be attributed to the coronavirus pandemic. 

Furthermore, the number of RIDDOR reportable incidents has reduced by 39%.  

As a result of the coronavirus pandemic the Health, Safety and Wellbeing team have seen an increase in 

awareness and understanding of health and safety, in particular infection control and the importance of risk 

assessment. The service has seen engagement from teams that pre pandemic, there was little engagement 

from requesting support in writing risk assessments and requesting advice. 

As a result of the pandemic, safety while home and flexible working has become increasingly important. 

During the pandemic, with support from the Communications and Digital Team, information about home 

worker safety has been shared with staff. The £200 equipment allowance scheme has helped to ensure staff 

have the correct equipment at home. The new DSE/Home Worker Assessment system was launched in April 

2021, which is a replacement to an outsourced system (Shine). The new system will support future ways of 

working as it incorporate home and flexible working questions to help ensure staff are working in safe 

environments. 

The HS&W team are in the process of adapting the health and safety training package. The team have been 

developing a new ‘blended’ style Management of Health and Safety training course which will incorporate e-

learning and online training. The team acknowledges that online training is not suitable for all groups, 

therefore the team have continued to carry out face to face training when it has been safe to do so. This 

blended style of training will continue into 2021-22. 

Work related to COVID 19 is likely to continue to be a priority for the team in 2021-22, however other 

priorities for the year ahead include; 

- Working towards meeting the KPI’s set within the H&S Strategy 

- Supporting and delivering various wellbeing initiatives  

- Carrying out health and safety audits and inspections 

63



 

18 

 

- Developing and reviewing H&S guidance 

- Working towards the objectives set in each departmental action plan, including increasing awareness 

of near miss reporting and accident investigation 

- Reviewing H&S training courses and developing new courses 

- Supporting the Ways of Working programme on health and safety related aspects 

 

Contact Us: Health, Safety and Wellbeing Service  

Health Safety and Wellbeing Duty Officer (0116 305 5515) 

healthandsafety@leics.gov.uk  

Appendix 1 The Wellbeing Service Annual Report  

REFERRALS 
 
The Well-Being service received a total of 213 referrals (85% female and 15% male) from April 2020 to March 
2021.  Due to the unusual circumstances relating to the pandemic, the number of referrals was significantly 
lower than the previous year and this meant that the service was able to reduce the waiting list from several 
months for non-priority cases, down to several weeks.   
 
Over the year, the service offered 2538 individual support sessions, which was like the previous year, 
however, the way these sessions were delivered changed.  The service offered 2205 sessions via telephone 
or Microsoft Teams video and 333 face-to-face sessions.   
 
The team adapted quickly to a different way of working to ensure that clients continued to be supported 
through a very challenging period.  Although face-to-face sessions were cancelled for a short period during 
the initial lockdown, safety measures were quickly put in place to facilitate face-to-face counselling for those 
in need or at risk.  Due to Covid restrictions, the team did not deliver any training courses. 
 
The following graph shows the pattern of referrals over the year.  It should be noted that the service only 
accepted emergency referrals, for a 5-week period, following the initial Covid-19 lockdown in April 2020.      
 

 

64

mailto:healthandsafety@leics.gov.uk


 

19 

 

When looking at referrals by department, the pattern was very similar to the previous two years.    The well-
being service received the most referrals from ‘Academy Schools’, followed by ‘Adults and Communities’, 
‘Children and Families’ and ‘LA Schools’.  Mirroring previous trends, ‘Public Health’, ‘Chief Executives’ and 
‘ESPO’ referred the least. 
 

 
 
 

PRESENTING ISSUES 
 
The referrals consisted of employees presenting with personal issues; work issues and a combination of both 
work and personal, (as shown in the graph below).  The number of individuals referring for personal issues 
(153) remained stable when compared to last year’s figure (168).  However, following the shift to working at 
home, there was a significant drop in the numbers presenting with work-related or both home and work-
related issues.  Only 28% of clients mentioned a work-related issue at point of referral, compared to 47% last 
year.  

 

65



 

20 

 

The referrals consisted of a range of different presenting issues and whilst employees often described lots of 
different factors affecting their well-being, the most common primary presenting issues were: bereavement; 
anxiety; a mixture of anxiety and depression; personal relationships and a combination of work and home 
stress, (see chart below).  Some clients also presented with covid-related issues and isolation, because of the 
lockdown and homeworking.   
 

 
 

Over the year, 24 referrals (11%) were considered as priority, and were escalated to the top of the waiting 
list.  These were cases that presented with risk concerns such as suicidal ideation,  safeguarding issues or in 
need of immediate intervention.  It should be noted that there was a significant reduction in the numbers 
presenting with sucidial ideation (4), when compared to the previous year (24). 
 

WORK STATUS 
 
Whilst 79% of referrals came from employees who were attending work, 21% were received from individuals 
either absent from work due to sickness or undergoing a therapeutic return to work (TRTW), see chart 
below.  This breakdown has remained stable for the past 2 years.   
 

66



 

21 

 

 
 
Of the 44 referrals that were either ‘Off Sick’ or on a ‘Therapeutic Return to Work’ (TRTW), 89% were women 
and 11% men, from the following departments. 
 

 
 

 
The main presenting issues for this group were ‘Bereavement’; (23%); ‘Anxiety/Anxiety & Depression’ (23%) 
and ‘Work Stress’ (14%), as shown in the chart below.  All these issues have been identified as areas where 
further interventions may be of use and the team are working to develop additional online resources to 
support the counselling offer. 
 

67



 

22 

 

 
 

 
12.6 percent (n = 27) of referrals reported that they were subject to a monitoring or support plan at point of 
referral, (see chart below).  The well-being service has a policy of escalating clients to the top of the waiting 
list if they are at risk of dismissal.  The service plays a crucial role in supporting clients to get back to work 
following a period of sickness and to remain in work during challenging periods, when they may be 
experiencing stress at home and/or work.   
 

 
 
Of the 44 cases that were off sick or on a TRTW at the point of referral, 34 had been closed at the end of the 
financial year. Within this group of closed cases, the work status of 2 clients was unknown, 1 person handed 
in their resignation, 2 remained off sick and the remaining 29 had returned to work. 
 

68



 

23 

 

 
 

INTERVENTIONS 
 
The core work of the Well-being service remains individual counselling and this offer is valued by employees 
as a confidential space to explore both work and personal issues and concerns.  Although a waiting list is in 
operation, this has been significantly shortened, and response times are much faster than other equivalent 
community services.  During periods of high demand, the wait times will lengthen as the service prides itself 
on offering a quality support service that employees can rely on. 
 
Due to Covid restrictions, the Well-being service was unable to offer the normal range of interventions, 
however, a member of the team continued to offer a Menopause clinic to provide advice and support to 
employees experiencing any menopause-related issues.   
 
Other new initiatives have also been developed.  The team felt that there was a gap in service provision for 
employees that wanted to talk to a well-being advisor, but not necessarily access regular counselling 
sessions.  In response to this need, Pause to Talk sessions are now available.  These half hour 
telephone/video slots are made available on a weekly basis and are open to anyone that feels they would 
benefit from having a one-off chat to a counsellor.  They are open to all employees that want to talk through 
a concern; MHFAs that require a little advice or support in their role and managers that may be concerned 
about the welfare of a staff member.  This means that staff can talk to someone relatively quickly, saving 
time on transitioning through the usual referral and assessment route.   
 
In response to an increase in referrals presenting with bereavement issues, the Well-being Service has 
developed an online course that can be accessed via the Learning hub.  This course is made up of different 
modules and employees can access the parts that feel relevant to them.  The course supports employees to 
understand the process of grief and touches on the issue of suicide.  It is helpful for those affected by 
bereavement and employees seeking to understand and support someone else through their grief. 
 
As a result of the first National lockdown, the Well-being service was forced to cease delivery of the 6-week 
Mindfulness Now programme.  The service recently offered, to those who had not been able to complete the 
modules, an opportunity to finish the programme via Microsoft Teams, with a view to continuing the 

69



 

24 

 

programme in this format.  Unfortunately, the team felt that, due to issues around confidentiality and the 
need to manage the group’s emotional well-being, Microsoft Teams was not an appropriate platform.  Steps 
are currently being taken to resume this course at County Hall, in a space that allows for safe practice.   
 
The well-being service includes a therapist trained in Restorative Practice.  This is a whole team approach, 
focusing on perspective taking, strengths and an exploration of systems that may be impacting on well-being.  
Members of a team are invited to work collectively to address any issues they may be having.  The process is 
tailored to unique teams and seeks to identify areas of need and find ways of moving forward.  
 
At the start of 2021, a pilot project was completed with a team in the Children and Families department, 
triggered by a manager’s concern about the impact of the pandemic on the team’s well-being.  The therapist 
found that whilst the team had been expected to change their practice, they were resilient and felt 
supported and valued by management.  The team recognised that the challenges they were experiencing 
were organisational issues, outside their own control and that of their direct line manager.  They also 
recognised that they had been offered tools to improve their well-being and were not necessarily making use 
of these.  The therapist expressed a willingness to repeat this practice in other teams to ascertain whether 
the organisational issues are a common theme that could be explored further. 
 

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR 
 
The well-being service has a Key Performance Indicator (KPI) to offer the client a face-to-face assessment 
appointment within 28 days of receiving their referral.  To ensure client safety this year, all initial 
assessments were offered via telephone or Microsoft Teams.  Excluding 1 referral that dropped out prior to 
assessment and 1 referral that requested a later assessment date, the team met the KPI target 100% of the 
time.  Most clients were assessed within 1 – 3 weeks of submitting their referral. 
 

MOVING FORWARD 

 
Over the following year, the team plan to develop online resources to support employees experiencing 
stress, anxiety, and depression, as well as providing education for those that wish to understand more about 
these issues.  We hope to re-launch the 6-week Mindfulness Now programme and advertise this course to 
reach a wide audience.   
 
The current Well-being team lacks diversity and does not currently represent the workforce in relation to 
gender, ethnicity, or sexuality.  There is a need for the service to reflect on issues of diversity and take steps 
to address any barriers individual employees may perceive or experience when considering or attempting to 
access the service.   
 
At present, the Well-being service offers a placement to one trainee therapist, who is currently working 
remotely and supervised by one of the team’s qualified therapists. Trainees are a valuable resource and offer 
consistent support to the team.  It has been identified that they would benefit from being able to access in-
house training and have a sense of being more integrated into the organisation.  The service is currently 
looking to offer further trainee placements.   
 
 
 

70



 

25 

 

SURVEY FEEDBACK 
 
The service had an overwhelmingly positive response from the client experience survey. Here are a few 
snippets of what employees had to say: 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

It has really helped me in my 
personal development, and I feel I 
have gained the tools to cope with 

my anxiety. 

It was easy to self-refer and I was 
contacted quickly. The assessment 
process was thorough, and I was 

given clear information about what 

to expect. 
I have received an exceptional 

service from beginning to end. I felt 
listened to, valued, and cared 

about. My thoughts were gently and 
appropriately challenged with 

fantastic advice on overcoming 
negative thoughts. 

My whole experience was great, I can't 
recommend it enough. My sessions have 

really helped to 
release emotional stress at a time that I 
needed it. I feel like I've dealt with things 

appropriately by 
talking things through and am now ready 

for the future. 

The service has been amazing. I honestly 
was at rock bottom when I started, I didn’t 

have any hope for 
any improvement in my grieving process 

and didn’t see a way forward.  My counsellor 
was sympathetic, 

but firm and honest and helped me gain the 

tools to move forward from a very dark 

period in my life.  Thank you. 

I think we are so 
lucky to have this in house when so many 

organisations choose to rely solely on their EAP. 

I think talking about things, even if 
you feel like you don't need to at the 

time, is so 
helpful and therapeutic. Having 

someone to listen, understand and 
help you see different perspectives 

is priceless. 

71



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE – 16 SEPTEMBER 2021 

ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUMMARY OF ACTION PLANS 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

Purpose of Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to present the Employment Committee with 
an update of the current Action Plans which contain provision for 
compulsory redundancy and details of progress in their implementation. 

 
Policy Framework and Policy Decisions 
 

2. At its meeting on 11 February 2010 the Committee approved a new 
Organisational Change Policy and Procedure (replacing the ‘Policy in the 
Event of Redeployment and Redundancy’) together with revised 
arrangements through which the Committee would exercise its oversight 
of the implementation of that procedure. In accordance with that 
decision, summaries of current Action Plans are attached to this report. 

 
Background 
 

3. Following the decisions made on 11 February 2010, the new 
arrangements also involve presenting a summary of any outstanding 
comments/concerns raised by members of the Committee.  

  
4. There are no outstanding comments/concerns on this occasion. 
 
5. Members are asked to indicate whether they wish a representative of the 

department concerned to be present to answer any questions in relation 
to any particular Action Plan, if they have not already done so. 

 
Recommendations 
 

6. That the update provided on the current Action Plans which contain 
provision for compulsory redundancy, and details of progress in their 
implementation, be noted. 

 
Background papers 
 
7. None. 
 
Circulation under Local Issues Alert Procedure 
 
8. None. 
 

73 Agenda Item 13



  
Equalities and Human Rights Implications/Other Impact Assessments 
 
9. The Organisational Change Policy and Procedure is designed to ensure 

that changes which impact on employees are implemented in a fair and 
non-discriminatory manner. 

 
List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Summary of Current Action Plans - Implementation Completed. 
 
Appendix B – Summary of Current Action Plans - Implementation Underway. 
 
Officers to Contact 
 

Anna Poole, Democratic Services Officer 
0116 305 0381 

Email: anna.poole@leics.gov.uk   
 

Gordon McFarlane, Assistant Director – Corporate Services 
0116 305 6123 
Email: gordon.mcfarlane@leics.gov.uk 
 
 

74

mailto:anna.poole@leics.gov.uk
mailto:gordon.mcfarlane@leics.gov.uk


  

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE – 16 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

SUMMARY OF CURRENT ACTION PLANS - IMPLEMENTATION COMPLETED 
 

 
 

Action Plan  Date Approved Outcome 

Adults and Communities - HART Restructure 2020 12/10/2020 3 redundancies 

Children and Families - SENA Action Plan 13/11/2020 4 redundancies 

Children and Families - Virtual School 25/03/2021 1 redundancy 

Corporate Resources - East Midlands Shared Services 18/02/2021 2 redundancies 

Corporate Resources - I&T Service Applications Management Group 01/05/2021 2 redundancies 

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
 

75



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE – 16 SEPTEMBER 2021 

SUMMARY OF CURRENT ACTION PLANS - IMPLEMENTATION UNDERWAY 
 
 

 

Action Plan 
Date 

Approved 
Current Position Next Steps 

Max Compulsory 
Redundancies 

Children and Families - Action 
Plan for Head Of Service 
Commissioning And Planning 

02/08/2021 
Action Plan launched, 1 x 
compulsory redundancy 

Await any comparability challenges 
etc 

1 redundancy 

Eastern Shires Purchasing 
Organisation - Action Plan for 
Sales and Marketing 
Departments 

21/05/2021 
Structure in place and letters of 
redundancy sent out to 2 
employees 

Check that appropriate changes 
have been made to Fusion in 
relation to the restructure and 
finalise redundancy payments. 

3 redundancies 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 

 

77



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2021.
	8 Pay Policy Statement 2021.
	Appendix A - Pay Policy Statement 2022-2023

	9 Wellbeing Update.
	APPENDIX Wellbeing Action Plan

	10 Attendance Management.
	11 Diversity and Inclusion update.
	12 Health, Safety and Wellbeing Annual Report 2020-21.
	APPENDIX - Health, Safety amd Wellbeing Performance Report

	13 Organisational Change Policy and Procedure: Action Plans.
	Appendix A - Action Plans Completed
	Appendix B - Action Plans Underway


